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Martis, 19° die Jinji, 1855.

Ordered, TuAT a Select Committee be appointed to inquire into the circumstancer of the
Expedition to the Arctic Seas, commanded by Captain M'Clure, of the Royal Navy, with a
'view to ascertain whether any and what Reward may be due for the Services rendered on
that occasion.

Veneris, 29° die Junii, 1855.

Committee nominated of,-

Mr. Mackinnon.
Mr. Wilson.
Lord Stanley.
Admirai Walcott.
Mr. Edward Ellice.
Sir Thomas Herbert.
Mr Ker Seymer.
Mr. Jackson.

Mr. Gordon.
Sir Thomas Aland.
Captain ScobeL
Mr. Isaac Butt.
Mr. Stephenson.
Mr. Talbot.
Sir Robert Peel.

Ordered, TaAT the Committee have power to send for Persons, Papers, and Records.
Ordered, Twr Five be the Quorum of the Committec.

-i Jovis, 5- die Julii, 1855.

,Ordered, TurT it be an instruction to the Committee to examine into the Claims of
Captains Collinson and Kellett, with a view to ascertain whether any and what Reward may
be due to them for the Services rendered on the occasion of that Expedition.

Veneris, 20° die Julii, 1855.

Ordered, TuAT the Committee have power to report their Observations, and the Minute
of Evidence taken before them, to The House.

REPORT- - - - - - - - - - - - - - p.ii
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R E P O R T.

THE SELECT COMMITEE appointed to inquire- into the Circumstances of

the EXPEDITION to the ARCTIC SEAS, comnanded by Captain McClure,
of the Royal Navy, with a view to ascertain whether any and what Reward

may be due for the Services rendere& on that Occasion; and who

were further instructed to examine intothe Iaimkof Captains Collinsont

and Kellett, with a view to ascertain whether any and what Reward may
be due to them for the Services rendered on the Occasion of that

Expedition; and who were empowered to report their Observations, and
the Minutes of Evidence taken before thei, to The,-House

AVING examined some of the most distinguished explorers of the Arctic
Regions, including those who were ordered to relieve or ascertain the.

fate of the lamented Sir John Franklin, having also had before them the
evidence of others well acquainted with the Polar Seas, and also the report and
evidence of Captain M'Clure, have considered the other matters to them
referred, and agreed to the following REPORT:

The attempt to discover a water communication through the Arctic
Regions between the Pacific and Atlantic Oceans, is one which has engaged
the attention of maritime nations, and especially that of Great Britain, for a
period now extending over nearly three centuries. It has fallen to the lot
of Captain M'Clure, his officers and crew, to set at rest this question. They
axe undoubtedly the first who have passed by water from sea to sea, and have
returned to this country a living evidence of the existence of a North-west
Passage.

Rewards for the discovery of a North-west Passage have more than once
been offered by Parliament. Successive Sovereigns have encouraged the enter-
prise, and men of science have, through succeeding generations, urged the
attempt. In the earliest Arctic voyages no doubt a hope was entertained that
the North-west Passage would open a safe and speedy route to India; but this
idea was speedily abandoned, and for a long series of years the advancement of
natural science and the extension of our knowledge of the globe appear to
have been the sole incentives of these expeditions, which, sullied by no lust of
conquest or selfish views, must ever be considered among the most disinterested
of national undertakings; they have served to bring forward some of the best
officers and bravest seamen in the British Navy, and have added greatly to the
lustre of that service of which our maritime nation is so justly proud. With
reference to the services of Captain M'Clure in the expedition, the circum-
stances of which Your Committee have been desired to investigate, the
evidence adduced enables Your Committee to present the following concise
account of the movements of Captain M'Clure, after the arrival in the Arctic
Seas of Her Majesty's ship " Investigator" under his command.

ABSTRACT OF THE EIDENCE PRODUCED.

On the 30th July 1850, the " Investigator " parted. company with Her Capt. KelUett's Ev.
Majesty's ship " Herald," Captain Kellett,, off Cape Lisburne, and stood to the
northward until the morning of the 2d August, when the ice was first fallen in
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REPORT FROM THE

M'Clure's Ev., with, in lat. 72° l, long. 1660 12' w. Captain M'Clure worked along its edge until
No. i88 and midnight of the 5th, when Point Barrow was rounded in open water; from

ouing. this point bis progress was beset with difficulties and anxieties of no ordinary
ebaracter, having to traverse an ice-encumbered sea hitherto considered im-

See Capt. Pullens practicable for navigation. In this sea the "Investigator" continued her
Evidence before course along the north coast of A merica, and on the 30th August reached Cape
Arctic Comnmittee Z
7 Nov. 18.51 al' Bathurst, having in the interval threaded ber course amidst sand banks, and
Capt. Beechey's heavy masses of ice, a great portion of that time enveloped in thick fog, where
opinion, Question the lead was the only guide.

Here finding that the ice pressed upon the shore, barring any further
advance, Captain M'Clure anchored until the 1 st of September, when the ice
slightly moving enabled him to round the Cape, crossing Franklin Bay, and on
the morning of the Gth high land was observable to the N. E., and on the 7th
Captain M'Clure landed on its southern extremity, taking possession in the
nane of Her Most Gracious Majesty, with the usual ceremonies, naming it

M'Clure's Ev., 97 Baring's Land, after the First Lord of the Admiralty. Proceeding to the
and following. N. E., through continuous fogs, until the morning of the 9th, when, it clearing

a little, high land was remarked, to which he gave the name of Prince Albert;
and on the 1 Oth two small islands were passed, which were called after Her Royal
Rlighness the Princess Royal; the further advance of the "Investigator " was
then impeded by ice setting in from the N. E., which beset her, and in which
she drifted about the Straits in great peril, attached to a small piece of ice,
drawing eight fathom water, until the 30th September, when she was firmly
frozen in. Captain M'Clure, entertaining a strong impression that the waters
in which the "Investigator" then lav communicated with those of Barrow's

'clure's Ev., 228 Strait, and that the important question of a North-west Passage might now be
and followiig. solved, set out with a sledge and a few men on the 21st of October for the

purpose of testing this conviction, having previously left instructions for the
guidance of the commanding officer, in the event of any disruption of the ice,
or other casualties, preventing his return to the ship.

On the 26th October, Captain M'Clure and his party reached Point
Russell, and, having ascended an elevation of about 600 feet, commanding a
very extensive view, had the gratification of finding that their arduous and
most fatiguing journey had not been in vain, for beneath them lay the frozen
waters of Parrv or Melville Sound, proving, beyond doubt, that " a north-west
passage from the Atlantic to the Pacific Ocean existed."

In honour of this event, Captain M'Clure named the strait. in which he had
left the "Investigator," after His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales.

The party reached the ship again on the 31 st October, and remained frozen
in until the i 4th July 1851, when the ice broke up. Every effort was then
made to get to Parry Sound ; but in consequence of the quantity of ice coming
in from the northward, these efforts were not attended with success.

The ship's furthest advance being latitude 73.14 north, and longitude 115. 32
west, Captain M'Clure therefore determined on bearing up, and attempted
a passage into Parry Sound, to the westward, and along the shore of Baring's
Land, which lie was induced, from apparent circumstances, to consider an
island.

On the 14th August he accordingly returned southward, and, rounding
Nelson's Head, made his way along the west shore of that island, accomplishing
what Captain M'Clure, in his published despatches, lias styled, " The terrific
passage of that terrible Polar Sea;" and on the 24th September, after several
providential escapes, succeeded in bringing the " Investigator " into a bay on
the northern coast, which, in thankfulness for his preservation, he has anpro-
priately riamed "The Bay of Mercy," and in the same night was frmly
frozen in.

JT beiug now evident that the " Investigator " had taken up her winter
quarters, and ber release upon the following season being doubtful, Captain
M-Cure thought itadvisable to place himself, his ofBcers and crew, upon two-
third allowance of all species of provision, and this was rigidly adhered to
during the period of 20 ionths, in a climate where a greater supply of food is

required



SELECT COMMITTEE ON ARCTIC EXPEDITION.

required to sustain men in a healthy condition than in others more temperate.
These privations were borne by the crew with uncomplaining fortitude, notwith-
standing its effects became painfully visible as their third winter drew towards
its close, in all, by their altered personal appearance, and in some by their
weakened mental faculties.

On the 11ith of April 1852 Captain M'Clure proceeded with a party by
sledge to Winter Harbour, in Melville Island, depositing a cylinder containing
a summary of bis proceedings, and returned to the ship on the 9th May, where
he remained for 11 months.

On the 6th April 1853 Captain M'Clure received a communication, brought car. Kclictts Ey..
by Lieutenant J.im, who had beern dispatched from Melville Island by Captain 9 and foIoAni.
Kellett, who had found the record left there by Captain M'Clure in April 1852,
and on the 7th crossed that portion of the Aretie Sea now called Banks'
Strait, to that officer's ship, at Dealv Island, a small island off Melville Island,
which he reached on the 19th, and having arranged with Captain Kellett that
if 20 volunteers could be found to remain with him in the hope of extricating
the "Investigator" during the navigable season of 1853, he had bis permis-
sion to do so, if not, Captain M'Clure and his crew were to abandon their ship
and join the " Resolute,» Captain Kellett.

About this period Lieutenant Creswell, of the "Investigator," was dis-
patched by Captain M'Clure to England to report the position of that ship.

Captain M'Clure rejoined the " Investigator" on the 19th May, and finding
that a sufficient numbvr of men would not volunteer to remain, he was com-
pelled to leave the "Imestigator " in the Bay of Mercy, whiéh lie did on June
3d, and reached the " esolute " on the 21 st.

On the 18th August Captain M'Clure, his officers and crew, quitted Dealy
Island in the " Resolute," and were again frozen south-west of Cape Cockburn,
and remained there until the 10th April 1854, when Captain M'Glure and bis
crew proceeded by sledge 180 miles to join the "North Star," at Beechey Island,
which they reached on the 27th.

On the 26th of August they proceeded in lier down Barrow's Straits, across
Baffin's Bay, to Disco, on the west-coast of Greenland, where Captain M'Clure
was transferred, early in September, to the " Phnix," under the command of
Captain Inglefield, avery distinguished Arctic navigator, who in another direction
had penetrated, by Smith's Sound, to the 78° 36' N. degree of latitude: they
arrived safe at Cork on the 30th of the sane month, having been four vears
and eight months in effecting a passage between the Great Pacifie and Atlantic
Oceans, performing what has been so graphically described by an American
writer of some celebrity, Lieutenant Maury, of the United States Navy, " That
Captain M'Clure and bis followers were the first to put a girdle round the great
continent of America."

The evidence places beyond doubt that to Captain M'Clure incontestably
belongs the distinguished honour of having been the first to perform the
actual pas ,e over water along the Northern Coast of America, between the
two great oceans that encircle the globe. By this achievement lie has demon-
strated the existence, and traced the course of that connexion between these
oceans, which, under the name of the North-west Passage, has so long been
the object of perilous search and deep interest to the nations of the civilised
world.

In addition to the completion of a North-west Passage, Captain M'Clure
and his officers have explored about 2,000 miles of coast line, where a blank has
hitherto existed in our charts.

lu the accomplishuent of this exploit, Captain M'Clure exhibited those high
qualities of enterprise, beroism, and endurance, which have indeed been the
common characteristics of the brave navigators who have carried the researches
of British adventure far beyond the contines of the frozen seas, which at one
time seemed inaccessible, even to the skill and courage of British seamen.
In the discovery of the double passage from the western waters of the Polar
Ocean, to the strait which Parry had many years ago reached from the east,
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Captain M'Clure has had the good fortune to complete the last link in the chain
of discovery to which many intrepid and persevering enterprises have contributed.
Few passages in the history of naval enterprise can command a deeper interest
than belongs to the position of Captain M'Clure in the autumn of 1851. In
the previous autumn he had penetrated to the northern extremity of Prince of
Wales' S trait, a channel discovered by himself, and had reached at its entrance
the frozen waters of Parry's Sound. Baffled by the ice in his attempt to force
his ship into those waters by that channel, he attempted another course. With
almost instinctive sagacity he came to the conclusion that the unknown and
unexplored land to the westward of the strait through which he had passed, was
an island, and that along its northern coast there must be another passage
from the open ocean into Melville Sound. He took the bold resolution to re-
trace his steps to the southward, and attempt to reach the same point by sailing
round an unexplored tract of land; and braving the perils of a coast navigation,
exposed to the pressure of the Polar Ocean. Your Committee have already
recorded the verification of his bold conjecture, and the successful issue of this
daring enterprise. Ample and honourable testimony has also been borne to
the intrepidity with which lie braved, and the judgment with which he met, the
perils which attended his attempt; and Your Committee cordially unite in the
tribute of admiration which this testimony has offered to the combination of
prudence and daring which marked his conduct in theadventurous achievemnent
in which he has succeeded.

Your Committee feel great satisfaction in being able to recommend that these
special services should be recompensed by an appropriate pecuniary reward.
For many years a reward of 20,000 1. was offered for the first person who should
complete the North-west Passage, by actually sailing with his ship from one
ocean to another. In the year 1818 that reward was modified by proposing
that a sum of

£.5,000 should be paid for passing - - - 110' West Longitude.

£. 5,000 ,, ,, - - - 120°0 ,

£.5,000 ,, ,, - - - 130° ,

The arrangements under which these rewards were offered were sanctioned
by Acts of Parliament. It appears that the sum of 5,000 1. bas been already
paid to Sir Edward Parry for having passed one of the degrees of longitude
for which the partial reward was offered.

In 1828 these Acts were repealed. Your Committee do nrot refer to them
as determining the question whicl has been submitted to their consideration,
but as supplying, in some respects, a guide to them in estimating the sums
which ought to be appropriated as the recompense for services of the same
nature wNith those for which the Acts of Parliament offered the reward.

Your Committèe, under all the circuimstances, recommend that a sum of
10,000 1. should be appropriated to Captain M'Clure and the officers and crew
of the " Investigator."

Of this sum they recommend that, as a personal tribute to his energy,
bravery, and skill, a sum of 5,000 1. should be appropriated to Captain M'Clure,
and the 5,000 1. be distributed, under the directions of the Admiralty, between
the officers and the crew.

Upon the most careful consideration, Your Committee have come to the
conclusion, that there would be great difficulty in their making any recommen-
dation that would extend the principle of pecuniary reward further than it has
been sanctioned by the spirit of the Acts of Parliament to which they have
referred. They therefore forbear from making any recommendation of this
nature, except in the case of those whose good fortune it was first to complete
and make known the enterprise which, from an early period, had been made the
object of a distinct and specific reward.

In this decision they have not been influenced by any want of appreciation
of the merits of the two brave and distinguished officers whose services they
were specially desired to investigate at a period subsequent to the original
appointment of Your Committee, or of the many other intrepid and distinguished

men
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men who have at different periods so nobly braved the perils and privations of
a voyage in the Polar Regions. lu dealing with a matter so difficult of adjust-
ment, Your Committee have felt that their prudent course was to confine such
a recommendation to a case in which they have precedent and authority to
guide them, and in which the performance of a specific service makes in itself
a distinction, which upon any ground of the general claim of enterprise and
bravery it.would be difficult, if not impossible, to draw.

Your Committee having been instructed by The House to investigate the claims Capt. Collinson's
of Captains Collinson and Kellett, two very distinguished officers, have, in com- Ev., 32o and
pliance therewith, taken evidence, from which it appears that Captain Collinson f"llowing.
was the senior officer of the expedition fitted out to search for and succour
Sir J. Franklin, aud afterwards to proceed to Melville Island; that in Julv 1850
Captain Collinson parted company with Captain M'Clure in a gale of wind after
passing the Straits of Magellan, and did not nieet him again; that Cap tain
Collinson entered Prince of Wales's Strait without being aware of its previous
discovery by Captain M'Clure, until he reached Princess Royal Islands, where
he found a record left by that officer ; that he forced bis way along Prince of
Wales's Strait to the entrance of Parry's Sound: that he was compelled by the
ice to return, and that, in the subsequent spring, exploring parties were sent out
from his ship, one of which reached Melville Island about 20 days after it had
been first visited by Captain M'Clure.

Your Committee cannot refrain from expressing their high sense of the skill,
judgment, and perseverance evinced by Captain Collinson in pushing bis ship
through Dolphin and Union Straits to a point many degrees further eastward.
than bas ever been attained by any other vessel passing from the west along
the northern shores of America, and in successfully extricating her from the
embarrassments of so perilous a position.

They also feel it incumbent upon them to notice the determination of this
gallant officer to return to the eastward in search of bis missing consort previ-
ously to having communicated with Her Majesty's ship " Plover," and from her
obtained intelligence of Captain M'Clure's safety; nor can they omit to men-
tion the bold attempt made by lim in the year 1850 to penetrate to the north-
ward into the beart of the Polar Sea, where he was stopped in latitude 73 2 by
an impenetrable barrier of ice.

In reference to the evidence regarding Captain Kellett, which was given with
much modesty by that distinguished officer, îvho had already served with great
credit in the Arctic Seas for many years, it appears that immediately on his
return to England, after havinig seen both Captain Collinson and Captain
M'Clure enter the ice at Behring's Straits, Captain Kellett volunteered to
accompany the expedition of Sir E. Belcher. He proceeded to Melville Island,
and whilst wintering. there, at Dealy Island, having discovered a record left by
Captain M'Clure in the preceding year, he was enabled to relieve that officer
from bis perilous position in Iercy Bay, by sending to bis aid an expedition
under the command of Lieutenant 'Bedford Clapperton Pim. It is impossible
to exaggerate the.importance of this succour. In the words of Captain M'Clure,
the officers and men of the " Investigator " were " at once raised from despon-
dency to the height of exultation and delight." Without this timely assistance
it may be doubted whether Captain M'Clure could have reached Beechey Island ;
if this could have been performed by Captain M'Clure and a few hardy men
of bis crew, the remainder would have had little chance of their lives, and might
have shared the fate of Sir John FranklUn,,in place of being now in their native
land. In concluding these remarksion ·a North-west Passage, Your Committee
cannot but express their satisfaction 'that the long-sought-for problem bas at
length been solved by this country, and that another ray has been added to the
maritime glory of the British Empire.

While Your Committee have n'ot felt justified in recommending -that the
principle of a pecuniary compensation should be carried beyond the case of the
commander, officers, and crew who actually achieved the objects sanctioned
by an Act of Parliament, they cannot but consider it their duty to suggest
that. the country at large would hail with satisfaction any distinctions %vhich
might be conferred, 'not only upon thé officers whose hames have beeji
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referred to Your Comniittee, but upon others who are no less honourably
connected with the perils and the exertions that have attended the explo-
ration of the Aretic Seas. For the last 30 years, and also since the loss of the
gallant and lamented Sir John Franklin, some of the most distinguished officers
of the British Navv have been commissioned to explore the Arctic regions,
and in so doing have encountered great dangers, hardships, and privations of
every description, much more severe and less endurable than those usually met
with in ordinarv maritime warfare. It is customary to award clasps to military
prowess in the field. Service in the Arctic regions may well be deemed worthy of
similar distinction. Her Majesty's gracious recommendation has invited Your
Committee to consider the proper mode of rewarding the officers whose names
have been specîally referred to them. Your Comnittee therefore venture to
suggest that there are marks of honour and distinction which, by brave and high-
spirited men, would be valued even more highly than that reward which Your
Committee have felt compelled to confine to those within the spirit, if not the
letter, of the legislative enactment which originally offered it.

In connexion with this subject, Your Committee beg to direct attention to the
evidence, which establishes that the grant of a medal to all those of every rank
and class en-ga ged in the several Arctic Expeditions, would be received with great
satisfaction. Your Committee feel persuaded that such a medal would honour
deeds of heroism, which, though not accompanied by the excitement and the
glory of the battle-field, yet rival in bravery and devotion to duty the highest
and most successful achievements of war.

The names of no other officers having been referred to Your Committee, Your
Comnmittee is of opinion that it miglit be invidious to particularise individuals
where ail have not only performed their duty but earned distinction; never-
theless Your Coinmittee desire, in connexion with this branch of their Report,
to call attention to the fact, that in addition to officers and men of the Royal Navy,
many high-spirited individuals connected with the Hudson's Bay Company and
the merchant service have nobly exerted themselves in the search after Sir
J. Franklin, and have gained distinguished positions in the annals of Arctic
Discovery. Their labours have also been shared by natives of France and of
the United States, with similar energy and zeal.

Your Committee would particularly allude to the United States Expedition,
equipped through the philanthropic exertions of Henry Grenel, Esq., and
connuanded by Captain de Haven.

Great praise is due to the commanders and crews of the small vessels sent out
by Lady Franklin. Your Committee cannot but express a hope that these brave
and enterprising men may be admitted*to share in any honorary distinction
awarded to those who have taken part in these services.

An accidental and early death eut short the already distinguished career of
the gallant and unfortunate Bellot, and Your Committee have learnt with deep
regret that the last few days have removed, beyond the reach of any honours
which it may please the Sovereign to bestow, a veteran explorer of these frozen
regions, whose name must ever be inseparably connected with the history of
Arctic Discovery. The islands and channels of this perilous sea, which are now
accurately laid down, and whose naimes are familiar words to us, were unknown
and undiscovered when Sir Edward Parry first entered the ice, to encounter the
hardships and dangers of a then almost untried navigation.

Before concluding their Report, Your Committee beg to allude to an incident
in their inquiries, a reference to which will at all events enable them to do
justice to feelings whicli have commanded their deepest sympathy and respect.

While the inquiry before Your Committee was proceeding. the Chairman of
Your Committee received a letter froin Lady Franklin, which is printed in the
Appendix to the Report.

It is scarcely necessary to say, that neither in their investigations nor in this
Report have Your Committee in the slightest degree interfered with anything
which it is the object ofthis noble and touching appeal to preserve. Your Com-
mittee cannot determine the extent to which it may yet be found that Sir John

Franklin
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Franiin and his companions had carried those discoveries to which they sacri-
ficed their lives.

Whatever may have beentheir extent, "tbis is ,certain that:a North-west Pas-
sage having been performed, it was in the search .for Sir John Franldin that it
was incidentally achieved. It may almost literally be said that it was his spirit
which pointed out the way. Future investigations .may perhaps deterine the
precise point of the path of discovery at which it pleased Providence that bis
labours should cease ; but however tâis mag be, it never can be forgotten that
it was in the attempt to trace his:steps, that this path was successfully pursued,
and only because men worth.y to be his followers went where they. hoped and
believed that he had already gone before.

20 Jidy 1855.
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PROCEEDINGS OF THE COMMITTEE.

Mr. Mackinnon.
Captain Scobell.
Lord Stanley.

Lune, 20 die Julii, 1855.

KE=mEs PRESET:

Sir Thomas Herbert.
Mr. Gordon.
Admirai Walcott.

Motion made (Captain Scobelo, and question, " That Mr. Mackinnon do take the Chair,"
put, and agreed to.

Committee deliberated on its course of proceedings.
Captain Sir George Back, P. N., and Captain Kellett, I. N., Examined.

(Adjourned to To-morrow, at Twelve o'clock.

Martis, 3° die Julii, 1855.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mr. MAcKnxNoN, in the Chair.

Admiral Walcott.
Sir Thomas Herbert.
Mr. Edward Ellice.
Lord Stanley.
Mr. Talbot.

Mr. Gordon.
Captain Scobell.
Mr. Stevenson.
Sir Robert Peel.
Mr. Isaac Butt.

The following witnesses were examined: Captain Sir James Ross N., Captain Kellett, n..,
Captain JVashington, R.N., Captain M'Clure, 'n.

Committee deliberated.
[Adjourned to Friday, at One o'clock.

Veneris, 70 die Julii, 1855.

MEMBERS PEMSENT:

Mr. MAcrINNON, in the Chair.

Mr. Edward Ellice.
Admiral Walcott.
Sir Thomas Herbert.
Sir Robert PeeL
Mr. Gordon.
Captain Scobell.

Sir Thomas Acland.
Mr. Wilson.
Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Ker Seymour.
Mr. Isaac Butt.
Mr. Stevenson.

Order of The House read, that it bc an instruction to the Committee to examine into
the claims of Captains Collinson and Kellett, with a view to ascertain whether any and
what reward may bc due to them for the services rendered on the occasion of that
Expedition.

Committee deliberated.
Sir Roderick Murchison and Dr. Domville examined.
Committee deliberated.
Admiral IHamilton and Captain Collinson examined.

[Adjourned to Tuesday, at One o'clock.
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Martis, 100 die Julii, 1855.

MEMBERS PEESENT :

Mr. MAcKINNON, in the Chair.
Sir Robert Peel.
Admiral Walcott.
Captain Scobell.
Sir Thomas Acland.
Mr. Gordon.
Lord Stanley.

The Committee deliberated.

Sir Thomas Herbert.
Mr. Butt.
Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Stevenson.
Mr. Talbot

[Adjourned to Friday next, at Twelve o'clock

Veneris, 14° die Julii, 1855.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

M4fr. MAcEINNON, in the Chair.

Sir Thomas Acland.
Lord Stanley.
Captain Scobell.
Mr. Gordon.
Sir Thomas Herbert.
Mr. Stevenson.

Admiral Walcott.
Sir Robert PeeL
Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Ker Seymer.
Mr. Butt.

Draft Report proposed by the Chairman, rend 1, as follows:-
" YoUR Committee having Cxamined some of the most distinguished explorers of the Arctic

Regions, including those wbo were ordered to relieve or ascertain the fate of the lamented
Sir John Franklin, having also bad before them the evidence of others well acquainted with
the Polar Ses, and also the report and evidence of Captain M'Clure, cannot but consider
that a North-west Passage bas been discovered, the concise account of which is as
follows:

AsTRnAcr or THE EvmicE PRODUCED.
On the 30th July 1850, the 'Investigator' parted company with Her Majesty's ship Capt. Kenett's Ev.

'Herald,' Captain Kellett, off Cape Lisburne, and stood to the N. N. W. until the morning
of the 2d August, when the ice was first fallen in with in lat. 72o 1', long. 166n 12' w.
Captain M'Clure worked along its edge until midnight of the 5th, when Point Barrow was M'Clure' Ev., No.
rounded in open water; from this point his progress was beset with difficulties and anxieties 188 and foowing.
of no ordinary character, having to traverse an ice-encumbered sea bitherto: considered se capt.in Pafen's
impracticable for navigation. l this sea the c Investigator' continued her course along Evidence before Arete
the north coast of America, and on the 30th August reached Cape Bathurst, having inthe commeittee, 7 Nov.
interval threaded.her course amidst sand banks, and heavy masses of ice, a great po i . e5; aloCaptdn
of that time enveloped in thick fog, where the lead was the only guide. Question 1380.

Here finding that the ice pressed upon the. shore, barring any further advance, Captain
M'Clure anchored until the 1st of September, when the ice s tly movin enabled hum to
round the Cape, crossing Franklin Bay, and on the morning of e 6th high d was observ-
able to the N.E., and on the 7th Captain M'Clure landed on its soàthern extremity, taking
possessioi- in the name of Her Most Gracious Majesty, with the usual ceremonies, nmaming
it Barig's Land, after the First Lord of the Adrniralty. Proceeding-to the N. E., through
continuous fogs, until the norning of. ,the 9th, when, it clearing a littie, lh ]and was
remarked, to which he gave the"name of Prince Albert; and on the 10th two islands were
passed, which were called after Her Royal Highness the Princess Royal; the further
advance of the cInvestigatoi' was thenujnpededby ie setting in from Ithe N.E. which
beset her, an in which sIdf b6ut the Straits in great peril, attached to a smali pieceof ice, drawing eight fathom water, until the 30th September, when she was irmly frozen
in. Captam M'Clure, entertaining a strong impression that the waters n which the

409. b 2 Investigator'

M'Clure's Ev., 197
and fonowing.
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M'clure's Ev., 28 ' Investigator ' then lay communicated with those of Barrow Strait, and that the important
and following. question of a north-west passage might now be solved, set out with a sledge and a few men

on the 2 1st of October, for the purpose of testing this conviction, having previously left
instructions for the guidance of the commanding officer, in the event of any disruption of
the ice, or other casualties, preventing his return to the ship.

" On the 26th October, Captain M'Clure and his small party reached Point Russell,
and, having ascended an elevation·of about 600- feet, commanding a very extensive view,
had the gratification of finding that their arduous and most fatiguing journey had nlot been
in vain, for beneath them lay tie frozen waters of Barrow's Strait, proving beyond doubt,
that ' a north-west passage from the Atlantie to the Pacifie Ocean existed.'

"Ini honour of this event, Captain M'Clure namned the strait, ini which lhe had left the
' Investigator,' after His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales.

"«The party reached the ship on the 31st, which remained frozen in until the 14th July
1851, when the ice broke up. Every effort was then made to get to Barrow Straits; but ini
consequence of the quantity of ice conming i from the northward, these efforts were nlot
attended with success.

" The ship's furthest advance being latitude 73.14 n.orth, and longitude 115.32 west,
Captain M'Clure therefore determined on bearing up, and attempted a passage into Barrow
Straits to the westward of Baring's Land, which he was induced, from apparent circum-
stances, to consider an island.

"On the 14th August he accordingly returned southward, and, rounding Nelson's Head,
made bis way along the west shore of that island, accomplishing what Captain M'Clure,
in his published despatches, bas stylcd, ' The terrific passage of that terrible Polar Sea;'
and on the 24th September, after several providential escapes, succeeded in bringing the
' Investigator' into a bay on the north-west coast, which, in thankfulness for his preserva-
ton, le bas appropriatcly named 'The Bay of Mercy,' and in the same night was firmly
frozen mi.

"It being now evident that the ' I nvestigator' had taken up ber winter quarters, and
ber release upon the following season being doubtful, Captain M'Clare thought it
advisable to place himself, his officers and crew, upon two-third allowance of ail species of
provision, and this was rigidly adhered to during the period of 20 monthà, in a climate
where u greater supply of food is neqreured t sustain mon in a healthy condition than in
others more temperate. These privations were borne by the crew with uncomplaining forti-
tude, notwithstanding its effects became painfully visible as their third winter drew towards
its close, in all, by their altered personal appearance, and in some by their weakened mental
faculties.

" On the 11Ith of April 1852, Captain M'Clure proceeded by sledge to Winter Harbour,
in Melville Island, depositin a cylinder containingi a sm ay o f o his preeg a
returned to the ship on the 9t Ma.y. e a u n oh sis p iga, .and

Capt. Kellett's E., " On the 6th April 1853, Captain M'Clure reeived a communication, brought by
191 and following. Lieutenant Pimu from Captain Kellett, and on the 7th crossed Barrow's Straits to that

officer's ship, at Dealy Island, which he reached on ti 19th, snd -having arranged with
Captain Kellett that if 20 volunteers could bo found to remain with him in the hope of
extricating the 'Investigator' during the navigable season of 1853, ho had his peraission
te do so; if not, Captamn M'Clure and is crew wore to abandon their ship and join the
' Resolute.'

"Captain M'Clure rejoincd the ' Investigator' on the 19th May, and finding tIat a
sufficient numnber of men could net be found to remain, he was conipelled te leave the
'i nvestigator' in te Bay of Mercy, which he did on June 3d, and reached the 'Resolute'
on the 21st.

" On the 18th August quitted Dealy Island in thie 'lR esolute,' and was again frozen
south-west of Cape Cockburn, and remained there until the 10th April 1854, when Captain
M'Clure and his orew proceeded by sledge 180 miles to join the 'North Star,' at ]Beeohey
Island, which they reached on the 27th.

"1On the 26th of August proceeded in ber down Barrow's Straits, across Baffin's Bay, to
Disco, on the west coast of Greenland, where Captain M'Clure was transferred to the
'Phoenix' early in September, and arrived safo at Cork on the 30th of the ame month,
having been four years and eight months in effecting·a passage between the Great Pacifie
and Atiantie Oceans, pcrforming what has been se quaintly described by an American
writer of some celebrity, Lieutenant Maury, of the United States Navy, 'That Captain
M'Clure and hi followers were the first to put a girdle round the great continent of
America.'

"Independently of the diseovery of a North-west Passage, which as been for some
centuries an object of perilous search by miany, ad of deep interest te the world at airge,
Captain M'Clure has contributed upwards of 2,000 miles of coast lino, where a blank preo
viousaly exited on our charts.

"It
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e- "It appears that formerly a reward.of 20,000 Z. was assigned to any person who performed
the whole of the North-west Passage. After the year 1818 this reward was modified and
divided into four equal parts, as follows:

5,000 L for passing - -
5,000 Lfor passing - -
5,000 L. for passing - -

- - 1200

- - 130°

and the additional 5,000 L. for going through.

"It fa~rther appears that Captain M'Clure passed-
130° about 1st September 1850;
120> about 7th September 1850;
110° about April 1851; and on 26th October .1851 completed the passage.

'From these sums 5,000 1. was awarded to Sir Edward Parry. There remains, there-
fore, the sum of 15,000 1. unappropriated, froin which Your Committee think that a mu of

i. might be appropriated for Captain M'Clure, a sum to bis officers of
at sum to his crew of

An Order from the House of Commons having reached this Committee to investigate capt. couinson's Er.,
the claims of Captains Collinson and Kellett, two most brave and distinguished officers, 320 ana frenowing.
Your Committee, in compliance with the directions of The House, have examined several
witnesses, from whose evidence it appea-s that Captain Collinson- was the senior officer and
commander of the expedition fitted out to search for and succour Sir J. Franklin, if alive,
and afterwards to proceed to Melville Island; that Captain Collinson parted company in a
gale of wind after passing th-e Straits of Magellan, and did not meet again; and that Cap-
tain Collinson had also the merit of exploring a North-west Passage about 12 months-after
it was discovered by Captain l'Clure.

"In reference to the investigation regarding Captain Kellett, which was given by that Capt Kelews Ev.,
distinguished officer with singular modesty, it appears that he performed a very great service N 140 Md fonowiig.
in discovering Captain M'Clure, by sending Lieutenant Pim, by which means Captain
M'Clure was, with his crew, rescued from a iost perilous situation. Without this timely
assistance there is a great doubt whether Captain M'Clure could have reacbed Beechey
Island; if tis could have been performed by Captain M'Clure and a few hardy men of bis.
'crew, the remainder would have had little chance of their lives, and might have shared the
fate of Captain Franklin, in place of being now in- their native land. In concluding those
remarks on a North-west Passage, Your Committee cannot but express their satisfac-
tion that the long-sought-for problem has at length been solved by this country, and that
another mzy has been added to the maritime glory of the British Empire.

"Another question bas arisen for the consideration of Your Committee, to wbich they
deem it their duty to caU particular attention. For the last 30 years, and also since the loss of
the gallant and lamented Sir John Franklin, some of the most distinguished officers of the
British Navy bave been commissioned to explore the Aretie Regions, and in so doing bave
encountered great dangers, hardships and privations of every description, much more severe
and less endurable than those usually met with in ordinary maritime warfare. Y"our Coi-
-mittee need scarcely enumnerate them, such as Back, Beechey, Belcher, Collinson, Inglefield,
Kellett, M'Clure, Parry, Ross, &c.; these brave and gallant men would be gratified were
they to receive sorme mark of their services from their Sovereign. A clasp is awarded for
every battle in which the militaryare engaged; a year of service in the Polar Seas is far
more dangerous, irksome, and trying than even a gallant battle. Commanders, officers,
and crews would indeed feel it a noble reward for their conduct, were they so rewarded..
-Herewith is.appended the evidence on the subject before Your Committee:

276. Chairman.] I wish to ask you a question upon another subject, which I consider
of gvery eat 'importance for our consideration; I think tbat, some time ago, you stated
to theRoyal Geographical Society that, in your opinion,.those individuals who had explored

.the Artic Sens had shown so much courage, so much devotion, and so much perseverance
amongst the hardships to which they were exposed, that if they did not meet with a sub-
stantial reward, they ought, at least, to receive from the country the reward of some honoraiy
distinction, such as a medal. Do you continue of that opinion now ?--I not ouly continue
of that opinion, but I feel most strongly that the country owes this distinction to every one
of those brave men who were ready to sacrifice their lives, and underwent such perils as the
Aretic explorers did. I an quite of opinion that not only geographers, but that ail naval and
military men, and every man who has ever thought upon the subject, will consider that the
men who have so perilled their lives, and bave shown'so much nautical skill, combined.with
:such perseverance and courage, ought to be distinguished exactly in the same manner as
those who peril their lives, whether it be at Sebastopol.. or fornmerly in the Peninsula. I
am sure that I only express the general feeling of the country, that all those- brae -men
ought to be so honoured; and, if youn will allow me to say it,,I think that thereý are some of
them, at least three, who well merit still higher honours. I am quite sure that in saying
this I express the opinion of many geographers also.

277. Will you name the three ?-In the order of rank in which they stand, ellett,
Collinson, and M'Clure.

409. b 3 "'278. Captain
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"' 278. Captain ScobeIL] In suggesting the very proper reward of a medal for the navi-
gators in the Arctic Occean, do not yon think that if given at all, it ought to be extended to
the officers, and to every seaman?-I meant it so.

"'279. Sir T. Acland.1 You alluded also to higher honours as being due to somte
among them?-Yes; if i may be allowed to extend my wish, I should melude another
naval captain, wlo though lie did not make the passage, did it in part. I mean Captain
Inglefield, whose voyage I have always thought very remarkable in exploring to a more
northern point than any one else in seaxrch of Sir John Franklin. Looking at the whole
case, we geographers have but one feeling, which is that of admiration of al the gentlemen
who have been eniployed in this search.

"'280. Mr. Ellice.] You think it very desirable that in every case .a medal sbould be
given to all those officers and maen?-Unquestionably. I am of opinion that all the seamen,as well as the officers, should receive an Arctic medal. I further think that all the explorers
in search of Franklin, whether by land or by water, and whether they be in Her Majesty's
iservice or not, should be honoured with an Aretie meda.l. Such men as Rae, Penny,
Kennedy, Stewart, Sutherland, and others, should not be omitted; and I would suggest
that the American officers, De Haven, Kane, &c., who have aided so zealously in the search,should also have the saine honours.'"

Proposed Report read 2° paragraph by paragraph.

Paragraph 1 read, amended, and agreed to.

Motion made (Mr. Gordon) to insert following paragraphs:-
" That the attempt to discover a water communication through the Arctic Regions

between the Pacific and Atlantic Oceans, is one which bas engaged the. attention oDf maritime
nations, and especially that of Great Britain, for a period now extending over nearly three
centuries. It bas fallen to the lot of Captain M'Clure, bis officers and crew, to set at rest
this question. They are undoubtedly the first who have passed by water from se to
sea, and bave returned to tbis country a living evidence of the eXistence of a Ncth-west
Passage.

"Rewards for the discovery of a North-west Passage have more than once been offered
by Parliament. Successive Sovereigns have encouraged the enterprise, and men of science
have, through succeding generations, urc«ed the attempt. In the earliest Arctic voyages no
doubt a hope was entertamned that the eorth-west Passage would open a safe and speedy
route to India; but this idea was speedily abandoned, and for a long series of years the
advancement of natural science and the extension of our knowledge of the globe appear to
have been the sole incentives of these expeditions, which, sullied by no lust of conquest or
selfish views, must ever be considered among the most disinterested of national undertakings;
they have served to bring forward some of the best officers and bravest seamen in the British
Navy, and have added greatly to the lustre of that service of which our maritime nation is
se justly proud. With reference to the services of Captain M'Clure in the expedition, the
circumstances of which Your Committee bave been desired to investigate, the evidence
adduced enables Your Comnittee to present the following concise account of the movements
of Captain M'Clure, after the arrival in the Arctic Seas of Her Majesty's ship 'Investigator'
under bis conmand."

Question, " That these paragraplis be inserted in the proposed Report," put, and agreed to.
Several paragraphs read, amended, and agreed to.
The following paragraph read:-" Independently of the discovery of a North-west Pas-

sage, which bas been fbr some centuries an object of perilous search by many, and of deep
interest to the world at large, Captain M'Clure bas contributed upwards of 2,000 miles of
coast line, where a blank previously existed on our charts."

Amendment proposed (Mr. Butt), To strike out the paragraph, and insert the following
instead thercof:-

l The evidence places beyond doubt that to Captain M'Clare incontestably belongs the
disting-uished honour of having been the first to perfrm the actual passage over water along
the NÏorthern Coast of America, between the two great oceans that encircle the globe. By
this achievement he bas demonstrated the existence, and traced the course of that connexion
between these oceans, which, under the nane of the North-west Passage, has so long been
the object of perilous search and deep interest to the nations of the civilised world.

"In addition to the completion of a North-west Passage, Ca ptain M'Clure bas explored
about 2,000 miles of coast line, where a blank bas hitherto existed in our charts.

" In the accomplisbment of this exploit, Captain M'Clure exbibited those high qualities of
enterprise, beroism, and endurance, which have indeed been the common characteristics of
the brave navigators who have carried the researches of British adventure far beyond the
confines of the frozen seas, which at one time scemed inaccessible, even to the skill and
courage of British seamen. Ample and honourable testimony bas been borne before Your

Committee
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Committee to the intrepidity with which he braved, and te judgment with which he met,
the perils which attended bis attempt; and Tour Committee cordially unite in the tribute of
admiration which this testimony has offered to the combination of prudence and daring which
marked bis conduct in the adventurous achievement in which, he bas succeeded"

Question, " That the paragraph proposedto be left out, stand part of the proposed Report,"
put, and negatived.

Question, " That the paragraphs proposed by Mr. Butt be there inserted in the proposed
Report," put, and agreed to.

Motion made and question put (Mr. Butt):-" That the consideration of the remnainiing
paragraphs be postponed until the Committee determine, by preliminary resolutions, what
course they will adopt with reference to recommending a pecuniary reward in the case of
each of the officers whose names have been referred to them," put, and agreed to.

Further consideration of the proposed Report postponed accordingly.

Motion made and question (Mr. Butt): " That in the opinion of the Commitee, Captain
M'Clure, and bis officers and crew, ought to be recommended to receive a pecuniary reward,"
put, and agreed to.

Motion made, and question proposed (Mr. Jackson), " That the sum of 5,0001. be awarded
to Captain M'Clure, and 5,0001. to bis officers and crew, as the Admiralty may direct."-
Amendment proposed (Captain Scobell), To leave out from the word "Tat" to the end
of the question, for the purpose of inserting the words:-"The consideration of the
question be postponed until the Committee have come to some determination concerning
:what, if any, pecunary compensation sbould be recommended to be awarded to Captains
Collinson. uad Kellett," instead thereof:-Question, "hat the words 'the sum. of' stand
part of the Question," put and agreed to.

Another amendment proposed (Sir T. Herbert), To leave out the words "5,000 L be
awarded to Captain M'Clure, and 5,000 . to his officers and crew," for the purpose of
inserting the words "20,000 L be awarded to Captain M'Clure, his officers and crew,"
instead thereof.-Question, e That the words proposed to be left ont stand part of the
question," put, and agreed to.-Main question put and agreed to.

Motion made, and question proposed (Sir R. Peel), "That it is the opinion of Your Com-
mittee that, limiting the reward to Captain MClure, bis officers and crew, no further
pecuniary grant be recommended to the favourable consideration of Parliament, with refer-
ence to the evidence which bas been submitted to Your Committee in thecourse of its
present investigation."--Amendment proposed (Mr. Gordon), To leave out from the word
"That" to the end of the question, for the purpose of inserting the words, " This Com-
inittee, considering that Captain Collinson did actually discover, by independent means, a
north-west passage subsequently to its discovery by Captain M'Clure, and that bis other
services in the Arctic Seas are of exceeding brilliancy and merit, recommend that a sum
of 5,000. sbould be awarded to *Captain Cohsn, bis officers and crew," instead. thereof.
-Question, put, " Tbat the words proposed to be left out stand part of the question."
The Committee divided:

Ayes, 6. Noes, 5.
Captain Scobell. Sir T. Acland.
Sir T. Herbert. Mr. Jackson.
Mr. Butt. Mr. Stevenson.
Lord Stanley. Mr. Seymer.
Sir R. Peel Mr. Gordon.
Mr. MaCkinnon.

Main question put and agrced to.

Considenation of the proposed Report then proceeded witb.

Motion made (Mr. Butt), < That the following paragraphs be added to the Report":-

"Your Committee fel great satisfaction in being able to recommend that these special
services should be recompensed by an adequate pecuniary reward. For many years a
reward of 20,000 L was offered for the first person who should complete the North-west
Passage, by actually sailing with bis ship from one ocean to another. In the year 1818
that reward was modified by proposing that a sum of

5,0001. should be paid for pasing - - - - 110
5,0001 , ,, - - - - 1200

5,000L ,, .- 130°

" The arranfements under which, these rewards were offcred were'sanctioned by A¿ts of
Parliament. it appears that the sum of 5,0001 has been already paid to Sir Edward Parry

409. b 4 for
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for having penetrated one of'the degrees of londitude for which tbe*partial rewaxd ia?
offered.

"In 1828 these Acts were repealed. Your Committee do not refer to them as determining
the question which has been submitted to their consideration, but as supplying. in some
respects, a guide to them in estinating the sums which ought to be appropriated as the
recompense for services of the sane nature with those for wrhich the Acts of Parliament
offered the reward.

"Your Committce, under aill the circumistances, recommend. that a sum of 10,000L should
be appropriated to Captain M'Clure and the officers and crew of the 'Investigator.'

" Of this sum they recommend that, as a personal tribute to bis energy, bravery, and skill,
a sum of 5,000 L should be appropriated to Captain M'Clure, and the residue be distributed;
under the directions of the Admiralty, between the officers and the crew.

" Upon the most careful consideration, Your Committee have come te the conclusion, that
there would be _-reat difficulty in their -making any recommendation that would extend the
principle of peuniary reward further than it has been sanctioned by the spirit of the Acta
of Parliament to which they have referred. They therefore forbear froin making any recom--
mendation of this nature, except in the case of those whose good fortune it wasifirst to
complete and make known the ente rise which, from an early period, had been'made the
object of a distinct and specific rewa

"lIn this decision they-have not-been influenced by any want ofappreciation of the services
of the two brave and distinguished officers whose services they were specially desired to
investigate at a period subsequent 'to the original appointaient of the Committee, or -of the
mnaniy other intrepid and distinguished men who have at different periods so nobly braved,
the perls andprivations of a voyage i the Polar.Regions. In dealing with a matter so
difficult of adjustment, Your Committee have felt that their prudent course was to confne
such a recommendation to a case in which they have precedent and authority to guide, and
in which the. performance of a specific service makes in itself a distinction, which upon.
any ground of the eneral claim of enterprise and bravery it would be difcult, if not
impossible, to draw.

Question "That these paragraphs be added to the proposed report," put, and- agreed to.

[Adjourned to Monday next, at One o'clock

Luna, 16° die Julii, 1855.

rnEMB3ER PRESET:

Mr. MAcKrNsoN, in the Chair.
Mr. Gordon. Mr. Jackson.
Captain Scobell. Mr. Stevenson.
Sir Thomas Acland. M r. Butt.
Sir Thomas Herbert.

The proposed Report (Mr. Machinnon) further proceeded with.

The following.paragraph read, amended, and agreed to: 'An 'order fromà the House
of Commons having reached this Committee to investigate the claims of Captains Col-
linson and Kellett. two very distinguished officers, Your Committee, in compliance with
the directions of The House, have taken evidence from which it appears that Captain
Collinson was the senior -officer of the expedition fitted out to search-'for and suc-
cour Sir J. Franklin, and afterwards to proceed to Melville Island;' that in July 1850
Captain Collinson parted company with Captain M'Clure in a gale of wind after passing the
Straits of Magellan, and did not meet him aga in; that Captain Collinson enfered -Prince of
Wales Strait without being aware of its previous discovery by Captain M'Clure, until he
reached Princess Royal Islands, where he founîd a record left for that officer; that he forced
his way along Prince of Wales Straits to the entrance of Parry's'Sound, that he was com-
pelled by the ice to return, and that in the subsequent spring exploring parties were sent out
from his ship, one of which rcached ]Melville Island about 20 days after it lad been 6rst
visited by Captain M'Clure."

Motion made(Mr. Gordon), 'That thefollowingparagraphs beadded to the proposedReport."
" Your Committee cannot refrain from expressing their hi"h sense of the' skill, judgment,

and perseverance evinced by. Captain Collinson inupuahing lis -ship through Dolphin and
Union Straits to a point many degrees further eastward than has ever been attained by
any other vessel passing frora the west along the northern shores of Aimerica, and in
successfully extricating- her from the embarrassments of so perilous a position.

"They also feel it-incumbent upon them to notice the determination of this.gallant-officer
to return to the eastward in scarch of bis missing consort previously to having communicated

with
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with Her Majesty's ship 'Plover,' and from her obtaining intelligence of Captain M'Clure's
safety; nor can they omit to mention the bold attempt made by him in the year 1850 to
penetrate to the northward into the heart of the Polar Sea, where he was stopped in lati-
tude 73jo by an impenetrable barrier of ice,"

Question " That these paragraphs be added to the proposed report," put, and agreed to.

The following neraph read, anended andagreed to: "la reference to the evidence
r g Ca ett, which was given with much modesty by that distinguished
o cer, who had already served with great credit in the Aretie Ses for so many years,
it appears that immediately on his return. to England, after having seen both Captain
Collinson and Captain M'Clure enter the ice at Behring's Straits, Captain Kellett volunteered
to accompany the expedition of Sir E. Belcher. He proceeded to M elville Island, and whilst
wintering there, at Dealy Island, having discovered a record left by Captain M'Clure in the
Preceding year, Le was enabled to relieve that ocer from bis perilous position in Mercy

ay, by sending to his aid an expedition under the command of Lieutenant Pini. It is im-
possible to experate the imortance of this succour. In the words of Captain M'Clure,
the officers and men of the ' esolute' were 'at once raised from despondency to the height
of exultation and delight.' Without this timely assistance it may be doubted whether
Captain M'Clure couldliave reached Beechey Island; if this could have been perfbrmed by
Captain M'Clure and a few hnrdy men of his crew, the remainder would have had little
chance of their lives, and mi-ht have shared the fate of Captain Franklin, in place of being
now in their native land. n concluding those remarks on a North-west Passage, Your
Committee cannot but express their satisfaction that the long-sought-for problem bas at
length been solved by this country, and that another ray Las been added to the maritime
glory of the British Empire."

Motion made (Mr. Butt), " That the following paragraphs be added to the Report,"

<"While Your Committee do not feel justified in recommending that the principle of
of a pecuniary compensation should be carried beyond the case of the commander,
officers, and crew who actually accomplished the result, for which a former Act of
Parliament had sanctioned that principle, ut the same time they feel that they do not
transgress their proper duty in suggesting that the country at large would bail with satis-
faction pny distinctions which might be conferred, not only upon the officers whose names
have been immediately referred to Your Committee, but upon others whose names are no less
honourably connected with the perils and the exertions that have attended the exploration of
the Arctic Seas. For the last 30 years, and also since the loss of the gallant and lamented
Sir John FranIlin, some of the most distinguiisbed officers of the British Navy have been
commiissioned to explore the Arctic regions, and in so doing have encountered great dangers,
lardships, and privations of every description, much more severe and less endurable than
those usually met with in ordinary maritime warfare. A clasp is awarded for every battle
in which the military are eugaged; a year of service in the Polar Sens is far more dangerous,
irksome, and trying than even a gallant battle. Her Mlajesty's gracious recommendation
bas invited Your Committee to consider the proper mode of rewarding the officers whose
names have been specially referred to them. Your Committee therefore venture to sug-
gest that there are marks of honour and distinction whicb, by brave and high-spirited
men, would be valued even more highly than that reward which Your Committee have
felt compelled to confine to those within the spirit, if not the letter, of the legislative
enactmient which originally offered it.

lu connexion with this subject, Your Committee beg to direct attention to the evidence,
which establishes that the grant of a medal to all those of every rank engaged in the several
Arctic Expeditions would be received with great satisfaction. Your C(ommittee feel per-
suaded that such a medal would bonour deeds of heroism, which, though not accompanied by
the excitement and the.glory of the battle-field, yet rival in bravery and devotion to duty
the highest and moet successful achievements of war."

Question, " That these paragraphs be added to the proposed report," put, and agreed to.

Motion made (Mr. Gordon), " That the following paragraphs be added to the proposed
Report."

" The names of no other officers having been referred to Your Committee, Your Com-
mittee is of opinion that it might be invidious- to particularise individuals where all have
not only performed their duty, but earned distinction; nevertheless Your Committee desire,
in connexion vith this branch of their Report, to call attention to the fact, that in addition
to officers and men of the Royal Navy, many individuals connected with the Hudson's
Bay Company and the merchant service have nobly exerted themselves in the search after
Sir J. Franklin, and have gained distinguished positions in the annas of Arctic Dibcovery.
Their labours have also been shared by natives of France and of the United States with
smilar zeal and energy.

" Your Committee would particularly allude to the United States Expedition, eqnipped
tbouoaeh the philanthropic exertions of Henry Grenel, Esq., and commanded by aptain
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" Great praise is due to the conimanders of the small vessels sent VaL by Lady Franklin.
Your Committce cannot but express a hope that these brave a id enttrprising men may
be admitted to share in any honorary distinction awarder.1 to those who have taken part in
these services.

"An accidentail and early death cut short the al.ready distinguished career of the gallant
and unfortunate Bellot, and Your Conittee have learnt witi decp regret that the Iast few
days have reioved, beyond the reach of any honours which it may piease the Sovereign to
bestow, a veteran explarer of these frozen regions whose nane must ever be inseparably
connected with the history of Arctic Discovery. The islands and channels of this perilous
sen, which are now accurately laid down. and whose names are fantiliar words to us, were
unknown and undiscovered w'hen Sir Edward Parry first entered the ice, to encounter the
hardships and dangers of a tien almost untried navigation."

Question, " That these paragraphs be there added," put and agreed to.

[Adjourned till Wednesday, at Twelve o'clock.

Mlercurii, 18° die JIulii, 18.55.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Mr. 'Licrm.;o., in the Chair.

Sir Robert Peel. Mr. Gordon.
Sir Thomats Acland. Sir Thomas Herbert.
Captain Scobeil. Mr. Butt.
Admiral Walcott.

The consideration of the draft Report proceeded with.

A letter fron Lady Franklin to the Chairman read as follows:-

"Sir, . 60, Pall Mall, 6 July 1855.
"I VENTURE to trespass a few minutes on your time and that of the Committee over

which you preside, in behalf of the claims of my late husband, Sir John Franklin, and his
comîpamons, as connected with the subject you have under discussion.

" Wlhen it is remembered that these brave and unfortunate men, after years of intense
privations and suffering, were found dead of starvation upon a spot which they could not
have reached without having first solved that geographical problem which was the object ad

aim of ail these painfal efforts, and when it is also remembered that they arc beyond the reacli
of their country's rewards, you will not, I think, refuse thein the just acknowledgment that
is due to their memories.

" It vould ill become me, and is fir indeed from my wish, to attempt to question the
claims of Captain M'Clure to every honour his country may think proper to award him.
That enterprising officer is not the less the discoverer of a North-west Passage, or, in other
words, of one of the links which was wanted to connect the main chanels of navigation
already ascertained by previous explorers, because the ' Erebus' and ' Terror' under my
husband had previously, though unknown to Captain M'Chire, discovered another and a
more navigable passage; that passage. in faet, which if ever ships attempt to push their way
from one ocean to the other, will assuredly be the one adopted. And it can never be denied
to Captain M'Clure that he is the first wio has by his own skill, and by means of the timely
assistance of the brave men who were in search of him, made his individual way from one
ocean to the other. Such a transit, though not the object vhich has engaged the attention
of the civilised world for centuries, is a distinction of which any man may well be proud.

"What I presume to claim for those who can urge nothing for themselves is the first
discovery of a navigable passage for ships in that unknown space which lay between the
discoveries of former navigators, for to such connccting channel lias the solution of the
geographieal problem for many years past been reduced. My husband %vas spcially warned
by his instructions not to seek it in the quarter where the ' Investigator' lies, lest impene-
trable ice should, as was anticipated, arrest his progress, and he found the passage by acting
(in conformity with his instructions) on those theoretical convictions which, as Sir John
Richardson has shown, he deliberately formed.

" Convinced, Sir, that it must be your desire, and that of the other honourable Members of
the Committec, to do justice to the dead, while you duly and generously honour the living,
and believing that these two objects do not clash, but may be harmoniously combined, I have
presumed thus to address you.

"I trust you will pardon the Widow and the Friend this last effort in behalf of those
who have nobly perished.

" I have, &c.,
"W. A. Mackinnon, Esq., ýi.P." (signed) "Jane Franklin."

Motion made (Sir R. Peel), and question, " That the letter be printed in the Appendix,"
put and agred t. The
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The following paragraphs (MIr. Butt) read, amended and added to the Report:

"e Before concluding their Report, Your Committee beg to allude to an incident in their
inquiries, a reference to which will at all events enable them to do justice to feelings which
have conmanded their deepest sympathy and respect.

" While the inquiry before Your Committee was proeceding, the Chairman of Your
Committee received a letter from Lady Franklin, which is printed in the Appendix of the
Report."

A further paragraph proposed by Mr. Butt, read; several amendments made-Paragraph
read, as amended, as follows, and agreed to :-

"l Ia the discovery of the double passage from the western waters of the Polar Ocean to
the strait which Parry Lad many years ago reached from the east, Captain M'Clure has had
the good fortune to complete the last link in the chain of discovery to which many intrepid
and persevering enterprises have contributed. Few passages in the history of naval enter-
prise can command a deeper interest than belongs to the position of Captain M'Clure in the
autumn of 1851. In the previous autumn le had penetrated to the northern extremity of
Prince of Wales Strait, a ehannel discovered by himself, and had reached at its entrance the
frozen waters of Parry's Sound. Baflcd by the ice in Lis attempt to force his ship into
those waters by that channel, he attempted another course. With almost instinctive sagacity,
he came to the conclusion that the unknown and unexplored land to the westward of the
strait through which Le had passed was an island, and that along its northern coast there
oust be another passage fron the open ocean into Melville Sound. He took the bold reso-
lution to retrace Lis steps to the southward, and attempt to reach the same point by sailing
round an unexplored tract of land, and braving the perils of a coast navigation, exposed to
the pressure of the Polar Ocean. Your Committee have already recorded the verification
of Lis bold conjecture, and the successful issue of this daring enterprise."

Several verbal amendments were made.

Question,
agreed to.

Question,
agreed to.

" That the Report as amended be the Report of the. Committee," put and

" That the Minutes of Evidence -be reported to The House," put and

Ordered to.report.

EXPENSES OF WITNESSES.

Number of Expenses Allowance TOTAL
NAME PROFESSION F R O M Days 0 during Expensesasent from JoUrneY

of or whence Home, to absence allowed
WITNESS. CONDITION. SUMMONED. Onder Ldon o toOrders of and

Committee. Back. Home. Witness.

£. s. d. £. e. £. s. d.

CaptainM'Clintock RoyalNay - Macroom - - 6 10 - - 6 6 - 16 6 -

Dr. Rae -- -.-- - - -- Mertbyr.- - - 5 3 16 - 5 5 - 9 1 -

25 7 -

LIST409.
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LIST OF WITNESSES.

Lune, 2° die Julii, 1855.

Captain Sir George Back, R. N. - - -

Captain Henry Kellett, R.N., c.B. - -

- - -pp. 1 , 6

- - - p. 4

Martis, 30 die Julii, 1855.

Captain Sir James Clark Ross, R.N. - -

Captain Henry Kellett, R.N., C.B. - -

Captain John Washington, R.N. - -

Captain Robert John Lemesurier M'Clure, a.N.

- - - J>.

- - - p.

- - - p-

- - - p.

Veneris, 6° die Julii, 1855.

Sir Roderick Impey Murchison - - -

William Thomas Domville, m.n. - -

Rear-Admiral Wm. Alexander Baillie Hamilton

Captain Robert John Lemesurier M'Clure, R.N.

Captain Richard Collinson, B.iN. - -

- - - p.

- - - p.

- - - p.

- - - p.

- - - p.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

Lune, 2° die Julii, 1855.

MEMBERS PRESENT.

Mr. Mackinnon. Sir Thonas H erbert.
Lord Stanlev. Mr. Gordon.
Admiral Walcott. Captain Scobell.

WILLIAM ALEXANDER MACKINNON, ESQ., IN THE CHAIR.

Captain Sir George Back, n. N., called in ; and Examined.

i. Chairman.] YOU are well conversant with the Arctic Regions -- Tolerably Captain
well. Sir G. Back, it. .

2. How many years have vou passed in exploring those regions -Thirteen
years.

3. You are aware of the obj ect for which we are assembled here ; will vou have
the goodness to state to the Committee what is your general impression of Cap-
tain M'Clure's passage, the North-west Passage, and also your general opinion
upon the subject ?-As regards Captain M'Clure's discovery, I think there can
be but one opinion of the great merit which attaches to that officer for his per-
severance in pushing his vessel through a sea encumbered viti ice, amidst
immense dificulties, and where a ship had never been before. I think also, that
his proceeding in getting up Prince of Wales's Strait with his ship was one that
showed immense firmness and great judgment. Perhaps still more meritorious,
in my opinion, was his attempt, and a successful attemnpt, in forcing his way
along the west side of Baring Islaud, where bis ship was necessarily exposed to
all the pressure of the northern ice, drifting down, as it sometimes is known to
do, with great velocity and immense force against the shore of that and other
lands. Judging from my experience amongst the ice, in Her Majesty's ship
"Terror," where Captain M'Clure comnenced bis Polar career-the account
of which has been published, and, I take it for granted, is well known to the
Committee; I say, judging from what we underwent there, the constant pres-
sure and up-heaving of the ice, in a manner, I believe, almost unknown, the
constant danger vhich attended us, and the extreme jeopardy in which the
ship was frequently placed, raises my admiration of the conduct of Captain
M'Clute in exposing himself and bis ship to similar dangers-dangers, how-
ever, which must be encountered, as he well knew, before success could be
achieved. With this vivid impression on iny mind, I cannot sufficiently admire
the conduct of Captain M'Clure and bis officers, who, vvith every faith in Pro-
vidence, could quietly thrust their ship into such danger. Doubtless, it is owing
to that firmness, skill, and intrepidity that the success of the expedition to the Bav
of Mercy was accomplished. There can be no doubt that Captain M'Clure's slipvas the first that ever traversed the Polar Sea from Behring's Strait to Baring
Island; and, in having accomplished that, it is equally certain that the credit
of the discovery of a North-west passage by a great channel is due sole]y and
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entirely to Captain M'Clure. I really do not know that I can add anything to
what f have related, beyond a re-assertion of the circumstances, and my great
admiration of the conduct of aill employed.

4. I think vou stated just now that no vesseel had ever gone to the north or
north-westernost part of Baring Island before Captain M'Clure's ?-I did.

5. The (lifficultv of so doing was the immense pressure of the ice coming
down from the north-west '--Preciselv so.

6. Of course, if he succeeded in weathering the north-west point of Baring
Island and went round, in doing that lie did what no other explorer of the
Arctic Regions had ever done before ?-What no person had ever done before.

7. Is there any possibility of passing by the south-east corner of Baring
Island in the Prince of Wales's Channel ?-It appears that Captain M'Clure was
stopped there by one continuous mass of ice; thereby lie wVas prevented fron
accomplishing a passage, which but for that impediment would have been
completed during the same year.

S. As far as I can understand, he attempted that passage first ?-He did.
p. Then, finding that he could not succeed, lie dropped down to the southern

extremity, %vent to the westward, and steered to the northward, and then turned
to the east ?-That is precisely what I think I have said.

i o. Woulid there have been any possibilitv for him, if the weather had
cleared, to have gone on with bis vessel?-That would have depended entirely
upon the state of the ice. Had Captain M'Clure commanded a steam-vessel or
an auxiliary stean-vessel, perhaps it is not hazarding too much in saying that
he would have got entirely through in the same season, by which means he
would have brought his ship to England.

11. Admiral WValcot/.] Do vou think that the ice would not have prevented
his forcing his wav through vith a steam-vessel ?-I do. Such is the uncer-
tainty of the drift or motion of the ice in the Polar Regions, that it frequently
happens, and I believe it did with Captain M'Clure, that a channel or a wide
space of water is visible, but, froi not having any steam-power, the ship
cannot possiblv get to it. 'flie impedimient between the open water and the
ship may probably only be 600 yards, perhaps less.

i 2. Sir T. Herbert.] And the wind may be directly against vou ?-Exactly so.
i-. Admiral ilcut.] Did Captain M'Clure see any such broken water?-

I believe I ami correct in saying, that at one time he did see open water to
windward of him, towards Melville Island.

14. At what distance froin Melville lsland ?-l cannot answer that question
exactly ; but lie told nie, to the best of my recollection, it was complete
sailing water; that is to sav, the pieces of ice were so smtall as not to form any
impediment to the ship's progress.

.5. Captain Scobell.] I suppose you have read the full details of the " Inves-
tors" passage from Behring's Straits to where the "Investigator" was left?

-. I have. .
16. Do you remember ab.ent what distance that is in a straiglt line -- No, I

cannot say exactly the distance. Perhaps between 600 and 700 miles; but
I have not measured it.

17. Renembering the great object which was in view, namely, the North-
west Passage, how far do you think, in the fair acceptatüm>n of the terni, Captain
M'Clure has made that passage, taking into considei:ation how he got home,
that lie travelled over the ice a certain distance, and theŽn proceeded by other
vessels to England ?-I should think, if T understand the question rightly, that
the distance between Captain M'Clure's furthest (if I may so call it), the Bay
of Mercy, and wlhere Captain Sir Edward Parry was in 1819, would be probably
from 70 to 90 miles in a straight line, east and west; that is to say, in the
direction of the Strait; I mean leading to open water.

iS. Has lie n<t, in point of fact, cleared up whether there is or is not a North-
west Passage ?-Undoubtedly, he lias cleared up that there is one.

19. Has lie not, in person and with his crew, made that passage ?-Unques-
tionably.

20. Though they did not do it in the "Investigator " all the way from impedi-
ments ?-As far as the Bay of Mercy.

21. Did you ever wvinter in that region of which we are speaking, near Baring
Island and Melvîlle lsland ?-I have not wintered there ; my wintering was to
the southward of that, in Frozen Strait, in the " Terror."

22. In.
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22. In wvhat latitude and longitude did you winter ?-I have not got the
latitude and longitude down here; but it is near to Frozen Strait, to the south-
vard; about 65° 18' and 83' 30'.

23. Still the region which you were in, and in which you persevered withl
your endeavours, vas full of the same and sinilar impediments which a more
northern latitude would offer -- I should say almost greater, because I was
coming from east to west, consequently against the current, and to the south of
that entirely; not in connexion with that, because there is only a passage
through Hecla and Fury Straits to my position, which was considerably to the
eastward.

24. So that your experience, you think, enables you to give a just judgment
on the case -I should say so.

25. Sir Thomas Herberi.] You were never at Melville Island ?-No.
26. You do not know how much of the distance from Melville Island across

to Cape Mercy bas been traversed by a ship, and the. distance of the part that
was left unconnected by sailing vessel between those points -I believe the dis-
tance is from near Winter Harbour, where Captain Kellett wintered, or
close to it.

27. In that channel, what distance do vessels from Melville Island reach to
vhat they call Banks's Islandi; how near the Cape ?-Not far; but the distance

is about 150 or 160 miles. .
28. Captain M'Clure did not perform that ?-Not in the ship.
29. Captain Scobell.] None of the other navigators from Sir Edward Parry

on to the present time, except Captain M'Clure, effected anything amounting
to ascertaining the North-west Passage ?-Not that I am aware of; not from the
westward, certainly.

30. Are you familiar enough with all the events of those various voyages to
know wlio, on the whole, penetrated furthest to ascertain that problem next to
Captain M'Clure P-If the Committee wishes me to answer the question, I can
have no hesitation in doing so. In a ship, Captain Colinson was unques-
tionably the second after Captain M'Clure.

31. Do you remember how much he came short in distance of performing
iwhat Captain M'Clure clid -- I am not well versed in that ; I believe that his
ship, in Prince of Wales's Strait, ti as a little to the north of Captain M'Clure's
position there.

32. Further on ?-Yes, a little higher up. He tried to get round to the west-
ward, and failed ; consequently, that would be bis northern point in Prince of
Wales's Strait.

33. Admiral Walcoit.] He reached more to the northward than Captain
M'Clure did ?-Only in Prince of Wales's Strait; not in the Bay of Mercy.
The Bay of Mercy is considerably to the northward of the other. (The Witness
pointed oui upon ihe nap lthe relative positions of the places nam ed.)

34. Captain Scobell.] Where was Captain Kellett's furthest?-(The Witness
pointed out the sanie.) It is a point near Winter Harbour.

35. Chairman.] You have not been there, have you -No.
:36. Captain Collinson, finding that he could not get through the Straits, what

did he do ?-Captain Collinson returned to the southward, and wintered in a
bay which you see to the south there (pointing out the sane), in latitude 710 35'
and longitude 1170 39' W. Then in the following season he went round here,
and wintered in Cambridge Bay; bis party afterwards travelled on the ice, up
to bere (showing the sanie), in latitude 700 26' and longitude 1000 45' W.

37. And came back ?-They then returned to the ship.
38. Where vas Captain Collinson at the time that Captain M'Clure made the

passage -I am not quite clear where he was.
39. Sir T. Herbert.] He must have been at Hong Kong ?-Yes, because he

wintered at Hong Kong.
40. Captain Scobell.] Where was Captain Collinson's furthest ?-(lhe Witness

pointed out the sanie).
41. What are the latitude and longitude of bis furthest -About 105° 20'

longitude, and something like 69° 8' latitude; viz., Cambridge Bay.
42. Sir T. Ierbert.] Captain Collinson got as far as 1050 West; thatis to

say, coming from the westward and going to the eastward. How far west did
Captain M'Clure get; that is, coming from the westward and going to the east-
ward?-1180 or 117. 50.

0.61. A 2 43. Chairman.]

Captain
SirG.-Back, 2..
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43. Chairman.] Then, as far as your view of the subject goes, there is no
question that Captain M'Clure was the only person who got so far to the vest?
-Not the least in the world.

Captain H1enry Kellett, iR. N., c. B., called in; and. Examined.
44. Chairman.] WILL you have the kindness to state how many years you

have been intimate with the Arctic Seas '-- wintered twice in the Arctic Seas,
and I have made three summer voyages to Behring's Straits in connexion with
this expedition.

45. When did your first acquaintance with the Arctic Seas commence ?-In
1848 I went there.

4 G. As vou are well aware of the objects of this Committee, will you have the
kindness to state your opinion on the subject, as far as it goes, with reference
to Captain M'Clure's discovery of the passage to the north-west ?-With respect
to the discovery of the North-west Passage, I will say that there is no doubt
that Captain iI'Ciure bas the priority of claim to that discovery.

47. In vour impression, if he had not gone to the westward of Baring Island,
lie could by no ineans have done it ?-1-e could; he would have done it
equally.

48. In what inanner ?-By going from Prince of Wales's Strait to Sir Edward
Parry's position.

49. But he could not get through ?-No, he could never get through with
bis ship; it has never been made by ships at all.

5o. Nor. as stated by the former Witness, has the passage to the westward
of Baring Island ever before been achieved ?-Never before- in fact, the actual
North-west Passage, as far as men going from the westward, as it vas in this
case, across and actually going over the footsteps of Sir Edward Parry, was
achieved first by Captain M'Clure, and in about 20 days afterwards by Captain
Collinson's party. Captain M'Clure wintered in Mercy Bay, and Captain Col-
linson the saine year wintered just a little to the southward, in the entrance of
Prince of Wales's Strait. (The Witnems pointed out the diferent positions on the
Map.) Captain M'Clure wintered here, and Captain Collinson in the sane
year there. Captain M'Clure's party went from here to there, and Captain
Collinson's partyv went from here to there (iointing out the sanie), both in the
same year, only Captain Collinson's party were 20 days after the other.

51. Admiral H'alcott.] That, of course, was in communication with each
other ?-No further communication than that Captain Collinson found Captain
M'Clure's records.

52. Chairnan.] But Captain M'Clure was the first ?-Captain M'Clure vas
the first by 20 days.

53. Then they both went back to their ships; Captain Collinson's party
returned ?-Yes, and so did Captain M'Clure's; they went back to his ship
also.

54. 'hat was the first year, as I understand ?-That was Captain M'Clure's
second year in the Arctic Regions.

5 That was in the year 1852 ?-Yes, the year that I went out there; and
I found Captain M'Clure's record, with the date of his having done so in
Winter Harbour, where Sir Edward Parry wintered before.

.56. Sir T. Herbert.] The first intimation which you had of Captain M'Clure
being in Mercy Bay was, from a party of bis coming over to Melville
Island ?-He himself came; it was from his having gone over and deposited a
record of what he bad done, vhich I found in October 1852.

57. What was the next intimation which you had of him ?-The next inti-
mation which I had of him was from having sent an officer of my own to him,
Lieutenant Pim, who reached him on the Gth of April 1853; I could not
send in October. I should have been only adding more men to bis difficulties
by sending over a party at that time, besides not supposing that he was there.

58. Captain Scobell.] Of what date was Captain M'Clure's record which you
found at Melville Island- -It was dated some time in April 1852.

.59. The previous April before you found it in October ?-Yes.
6o. You found it in April?-i did in October.
61. What distance did you afterwards ascertain that Captain M'Clure was

from you; what was the distance between where the " Investigator " wintered
and
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and you, in a straight line ?-He was about 165 miles, as the crow files: I think, Captain
about 168 or 170 miles by sledge route. H. Keeu,P.,.,c.

62. If there had been no ice, would it have been entirely seat. between you
and him ?--I think so, as far as one could judge.

63. No reports came to you that there were indications of land ?-No.
64. Then, geographically speaking, has he or has he not, in person with bis

crew, performed the North-west Passage, not in the "Investigator," but himself?
-1 consider that he has.

65. And he bas solved the problem, in fact - He has solved that problem.
66. Mr. Cordon.] Sir George Back has stated that, in his opinion, if Captain

M'Clure had been furnished with any steam-power, he would have been able to
make the passage not only in person, but with bis vessel; do you concur in that
opinion ?-No; I do not think .it practicable for any vessel ever to go by the
west through that channel with any power. I do not think it possible.

67. Admiral Walcott.] Then your opinion is, that if Captain Collinson, as
well as Captain M'Clure, lad had a screw-vessel with them, it would have been
impracticable for them to have forced through the ice, which is generally, and
indeed, if I understand you rightly, at all times so thick, that thev could not
have made a passage in that direction ?-I do not think they ever could. They
may have passed one another a mile or two in Prince of Wales's Srait ; but I

*do not think it ever practicable for a vessel to get from the southward up
througli that Strait into Barrow Strait. from what I have seen.

68. 'Then it is your impression that, from the position in which Captain, Col-
linson was, he could never have achieved the North-west Passage ?-Never, with
his ship.

69. Captain Scobell.] You pointed out, a little while ago, where Captain
Collinson wintered, bis furthest, and where the " Investigator' vas left ; what
is the distance, in a straight line, from the one to the other ?-They could not
go straight; every one of those distances is given in the Blue Book. I think
there is a small chart in the Blue Book; 1 could get it out with a pair of com-
passes.

70. Will vou give the latitude and longitude where the " Investigator" was
left, and the furthest which Captain Collinson reached ?-It is about 230 miles,
I think.

71. Admiral Walkot.] In your opinion, at the time Captain Collinson reached
the longitude which he did, and in the position in which he was, would it have
been practicable, as far as it is possible to judge, from the state of the ice which
you might have seen from Melville Island, to have gone by the ice from where
Captain Collinson had his ship to Melville Island, or for Captain M-Clure to
have done it ?-Perfectly easy. Captain Collinson went froin that position.

7?. To Melville Island ?-Yes; he was only 20 days after Captain M'Clure.
Captain M'Clure was one year longer on the ice than Captain Collinson; le
vent one year before. The same year that Captain M'Clure went round here

(shozcing the sane), Captain Collinson got into the ice and lie wintered here.
73. I understand that the impression which you give to the Committee is

precisely this, that Captain M'Clure has the merit of having achieved the
North-west Passage in the first instance ?-That is exactly it.

74. And Captain Collinson in the second instance ?-Yes.
75. Captain Scobeil.] Did Captain Collinson go from where bis vessel

wintered to Melville Island ?-Yes ; that is to say his party did ; some of his
-officers and crew.

76. Supposing Captain M'Clure had not made the passage, then Captain
Collinson may be supposed to have done it in the same sense'l-Yes; 20 days
later.

77 Having performed a large portion of it over the ice ?-Yes.
7S. Ciairnan.] Was that the year after ?-The sane year.
79. Captain Scobell.) How long after ?-About 20 days, I think it was, as near

as possible; their sledges crossed one another.
So. Sir 7 Herbert.] Captain Collinson had the advantage of the information

which Captain M'Clure left at the different stations as he went along?-Yes,
he found bis records. Captain M'Clure's was a perfectly unknown land to
him.

S. Admiral ïValcott.] If I understand you rightly, Captain Collinson had
the advantage of the records which Captain M'Clure left during his progress, or

o.61. A 3 a part
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Captain a part of his progress ?-Yes; the records which lie left are in this book. I do
J.KeiU. R.N., C.B. not think there was anything left by Captain M'Clare as to what his intentions

were-I do not suppose le knew verv well what they were, depending entirely
2 JuIy 1855. on his finding water ; but Captain ICollinson certainly found his records of

what lie had doue.
S2. And lie knew that Captain M'Clure was before him ý-Yes, lie knew that

Captain M'Clure had been hefore him wherever he went.
83. Captain -Scobell.1 Do you consider it an act of great preseverance that

when Captain M'Clure found that lie could not get through Prince of Wales's
Straits, lie went riglit round the îsland on the outside with the pressure of the
whole Arctic Sea ice upon him i-I do certainly think it a must unparalleled
piece of perseverance, and I have seen a good deal of it.

84. That part of what lie did, taken as a part of the whole, must have been
the most dangerous of the whole ?-Yes ; for one period lie was six weeks on
the face of a perpendicular coast, where, if the ice had come upon him, there
could not have been a man saved. I do not think it is quite fair to suppose
that Captain M'Clure, if lie had found a passage there, would have persevered
and gone through, because that ,was not the object of his voyage; the North-
west Passage was not the object of his voyage. It was stated that lie would
have gone through the saine vear; I do not think that lie would have done so,
or could have done so, even if it had been open; it might have been in his
power.

8.5. Sir T. Herbert.] Did vou sec Captain M'Chure's orders -- I did; a copy
of them was sent; they were Captain Collinson's orders.

S6. He lad a copy of thein ; when lie communicated with you, did le show
you a copy of his orders ?-I had a copy of his orders; I knew them very
well.

87. Will vou state to the Committee what his orders were ; was lie ordered
to go to Melville Island?-He was, I think ; I arn ab-nost sure he was, but
I cannot exactly say whether the words " Melville Island" were included. The
orders are there.

88. Captain ScobelI.] Your officers and crew were healthy throughout the
winters which vou passed there, were not they !--Perfectly healthy. Captain
M'Clure's ship was abandoned in consequence of the state of his crew, and the
length of time, and the impracticability of getting lier out.

89. Admirai Walcolt.] At the time wMhen you vere ordered to desert your
ship, had you the impression that, had you not deserted her, you lad sufficient
provisions, and that your crew wcre sufficiently healthy to have rua the chance
of another winter of getting clear? -Thev were perfectly healthy, and there
were quite sufficient provisions for the number of men that would have been
necessary for me to have brouglit the vessels out.

Captain Sir GeorgC Back , again called in; and further Examined.

Captain go. Sir T. H!erbert.] YOU lad a conversation at the Admiralty with the
Sir G. )ack, a.w. First Lord of the Admiralty, I believe, or with the parties there at the time,

when the expedition vas going out to look for Captain M'Clure and Captain
Collinson, on account of the anxietv about thei: what was the nature of that
conversation ?--I mav mention tht the Duke of iNorthumberland sent for me
to the Admiralty, and in the presence of the late Admiral Hyde Parker asked
my opinion respecting any succour that imight be rendered to Captain M'Clure,
or, in fact, any plan that 1 might entertain of sending out another expedition.
I strongly recommended that succour of sone kind or other, by ship, should
be sent towards Melville Island, in the hope of meeting witlh Captain N'Clure.
I believe that was all. From that originated other things, which terminated as
you know.

gi. Was this after Sir Edward Belcher had sailed ?-No; Sir Edward
Belcher lad just been appointed, but le lad not sailed.

92. Chairnu.] Is there anything else which you have to state to the Com-
mittee upon the subject of Captain M'Clure's expedition ?--I have nothing to
state individually, further than 1 have stated.

9:. Captain Scobell.j About what vear -was that conversation ?-It must have
been previous to the going out of Sir Edward Belcher's expedition ; it would be
about June 1852, I should think; May or June.

94. Admiral
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94. Admiral Walcott.] In the summer of 1852 ?-Yes; al that I wish to
state is, that the Duke of Northumberland felt a very warm interest in the
fate of Captain M'Clure.

95. Captain Scobell.] And of Captain Collinson, of course ?-Naturally; they
being the Expedition, in fact.

Martis, 30 die Juiji, 1855.
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Captain Sir James Clark Ross, R. N., called in ; and Examined.

96. Chwairman.] YOU have been long conversant with the Arcetie Seas ?-Yes; captain
I have been many voyages to that region. C. Ross, a. .

97. You are well aware what we are assembled here for; will you state
generally your opinion as to what was accomplished by Captain M'Clure, with Jly 1855.

reference to the discovery of the North-west Passage ?-There can be but one
opinion of Captain M'Clure having accomplished the remaining portion of the
passage, that portion which was left undone by Sir Edward Parry. The
discovery of the North-west Passage may properly be said to have been
made by Sir Edward Parry, Sir John Franklin, and Sir John Richardson; but
Captain M'Clure has completed in a ship that which Sir Edward Parry had left
unaccomplished.

98. Admiral Walcott.~] The question which the Committee desire to ask you
is not as to the comparative merits of Captain M'Clure and Sir Edward Parry,
and others (whose indomitable perseverance and meritorious exertions all must
acknowledge); but the question is, whether to Captain M'Clure does not belong
the merit of having solved the problem of the North-west Passage in so far as
this: that he went in at one end, and came out at the other ?-There cannot be
the least doubt about it ; but as it is upon record that Sir Edward Parry had
found a portion of the North-west Passage, and - received a reward for it, I
meant to say that it was the remaining part of the North-west Passage that
Captain M'Clure has accomplished in the " Investigator."

99. Captain Scobell.] If Captain Parry received a reward- for performing
part of the North-west Passage, does not that circumstance lessen the claim of
any person who performed the whole of the North-west Passage ?-I should
think so. In the first place, the reward was offered to any person who should
sait through the North-%west Passage; that was modified after the first voyage
in 1818, and it was apportioned out in four parts: 5,000 1. for passing 1100,
10,000 L. for passing 130°, 15,000 1. for passing 150° west longitude, aud
20,000 1. for going through; the first portion of which was received by
Sir Edward Parry; and if the Board of Longitude had not been dissolved,
Captain M'Clure and his crew would have been entitled to the other 15.000 1.

100. Mr. Ellice.] Captain M'Clure is the only one who lias gone through ?-
He is the only one who bas gone entirely through, except his officers and crew.

i o 1. Chairman.] He is the only one who bas taken a belt round America?
-Yes.

i o2. Mr. Ellice.] He may be said to be the first and hitherto the only real
discoverer of the through passage from the Atlantic to the Pacific ?-Certainly,
he bas been the first to go entirely through. Captain Collinson may be said
also to have discovered a passage, but that was a year later, and he did not go

o.61. A 4 through
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Captain through it; but lie discovered a communication by water, vhich was not known
bir J. C.Ros, '- . before. If Captain M'Clure and all his officers had perished, Captain Collinson

vould have proved that there was a NÇorth-west Passage by what lie did ; but
3 J 1855. Captain M'Clure was a twelvemonth before him.

103. Captain Scobell.] Captain M'Ciure got to the Bay of Mcrcy by per-
severing, after lie was defeated in Prince of Wales Strait, in going round
Earing Island, notwithstanding the pressure and the dangers of the Arctic ice?
-Yes.

104. Captain Collinson did not attempt to go round -- Yes, but did not
get so far; he went up Princess Royal Channel, and thus would have equally
proved the North-west Passage, if Captain M'Clure had not anticipated him.

i u5. Which advanced furthest up Prince of Wales Strait--Captain Collinson,
in the " Enterprize."

1o6. Chairman.] Did Captain Collinson, or did lie not, go further than Cap-
tain M'Clure : -- In his ship lie did not go so far as Captain M'Clure round
Baring Island; and lie equally went across to Melville Island over the ice.

107. Was not the direction which the Admiralty gave to Captain M'Clure
to go through the Pacific and to reach Melville Island, in fact, a direction to
him to attempt the North-west Passage ?-No doubt of it. I do not know that
the Admiralty intended by those orders that lie should seek for the North-west
Passage. I suppose lie was directed to go there in search of Sir John Franklin,
in the expectation that Sir John Franklin might have gone there from the east-
ward, and that Captain M-Clure niight reach himi froni the westward. I do not
suppose that the Admiralty sent out Captain Collinson or Captain M'Clure
for the purpose of discovering the North-west Passage.

ioS. Mr. Gordon.] But thougli not for the purpose, the orders of the
A dmiralty, if carried out, would have had the effect of ordering him to accom-
plish that ?-No doubt.

i o. Mr. .Ellice.] The Act of Parliament promises the reward to any person
first finding out and sailing through the North-west Passage" --Yes; that

was afterwards mlodified by the Act of 18 19, apportioning the reward.
i o. Chainnan.) In your impression, " sailing through," or "going through,"

mean the same thing i-I suppose so.
i n. Admiral Wlcott.] Captain Collinson, by a party, communicated with

Melville Island -- I think by a sledge party.
i 12. \Vas that before or after Captain M'Clure communicated with Melville

Island -I think it must have been after.
i 13. Ciairman.] Your impression is, that Captain M'Clure was the first man

who made a sort of belt round the island?-There is no doubt of it.
i 14. Mr. llice.] There is no doubt of the facts, which are matter of public

notoriety, and beyond controversv, that Captain M'Clure is- the first and only
person wlo has passed from sea to sea -- There is no doubt that Captain
M'Clure is the first commander of a ship that lias passed from sea to sea, but
Lieutenant Cresswell and his party were the first individuals, and Captain
M'Clure was therefore not the first person nor the only person, as he was
accompanied by the ex-offlicers and crew of the ship he commanded.

captai n

Captain HIenry Kellett, n.N., c.n., called in; and further Examined.

115. Admiral Wdcoti.] WILL you be so good as to acquaint the Committee
whether Captain M'Clure coumunicated directly with you at Melville Island,
after having left his ship ofl- B;nks's Island -- Yes : Captain M'Clure came
himself direct to me.

i G. Sir T. Herbert.] Wlen vou abandoned vour vessel, wlat remuneration
did vou get on account of your stores and your clothing ?-I received remunera-
tion for my losses, but nlot exactly agreeably vith my demands. Iin most cases
the denands of the officers were not up to the service allowance.

1 7. Captain Scobell.] After Captain M'Clure reached you at Melville Island,
bv what means did le reach England ?---He walked to Beechey Island, and then
he went in the " North Star " as far as Lievely in Greenland, and from thence
lie came home in tie " Phcenix" to Cork.

i i S. Did the officers and crew accompany him i-No; they came home in.
other vessels at the same time.

g19. Admiral
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1g. Admiral Watott.] By " walking," do you mean walking over the ice-
Yes; he walked upon frozen water, in fact.

120. Mr. Stephenson..] The first communication that took place between your
vessel and Captain NM'Clure's was- through the medium of Lieutenant Pim?-
It was. They started at a.very early season, a most unprecedented season, with
the temperature at 50° below zero, and they went across,. and met him on the
6th of April.

121. 1)id you then consider that the communication thar took place between
your vessel and Captain M'Clure was mainly dépendent upon the energy of
Lieutenant Pim ?-Lieutenant Pini had bis orders to go. I knew that Captain
M'Clure had been a year before in that position. and I sent Mr. Pim to com-
municate with Captain M'Clure.

122. He conducted that expedition to your satisfaction ?-He conducted that
expedition.

1-23. Mr. Gordon.] If the communication which took place between vou and
Captain M'Clure had not taken place at the time it did, is it your opinion that
Captain M'Clure would have been enabled to perform the pas-age at all?-
Captain M'Clure had actually performed the passage at that time.

124. But would he have been able to have actually done what no one before
had done, namely, to have made the whole circuit ?-Not withont assistance,
certainly ; he might have walked to Beechey Island, but it would have been a
very great trial under those circumstances. I think some of bis healthy men
might have walked to Beechey Island, but I think the greater proportion of bis
men would not bave been able.

125. You have no doubt that he received very important assistance ?-I con-
ceive certainly that he received most important assistance. Had not the
Admiralty sent ships to the westward, I do not think Captain M'Clure would have
been here now to receive the honours which I hope he may obtain.

I 26. In short, the success of his expedition is, in some degree, to be attributed
to the succour which he received from you?--Yes; his successful arrival in
this country.

127. Chairman.] What was the distance that he had to walk, which you say
might have been achieved by strong men ?-About 500 miles to Beechey Island;
When Lieutenant Meecham, (one of my officers), found Captain Collinson's
record, he went in 63 days 1,200 miles; but few men can do that. It had never
been done before by any traveller in that time.

128. In your opinion the assistance was very important to Captain M'Clure;
but it was possible that he might have done without it ?-Exactly; it is possible
that he might have reached Beechey Island.

29. Captain Scobell.] Were the depôts of provisions known to Captain
M'Clure ?-There was a depôt, which he supposed to be a large one, at Beechey
Island, and for which he was about to start 20 of bis men, but it was a
miserable depôt; there was not sufficient there to maintain them for a week,
to say nothing of a winter. But those men were actually going to that place;
therefore, I say, the assistance they received was very necessary to their
salvation.

130. Mr. Stephenson.] Were not Captain M'Clure and his crew in a very
reduced state when Lieutenant Pim arrived there ?-They were.

131. Considering the state they were then in, are you able to form an opinion
as to their capability of walking to Beechey Island ?-I should think there were
some of them that would have walked, in fact some did; because Lieutenant
Cresswell went down there, and so did Mr. Wynniat. But they were all in
a very bad state, without any exception.

132. Although you think it possible that they might have walked to Beechey
Island, do you think it probable under the circumstances ?-Yes; I think that
some might have got there, but no doubt with great losses. I think that they
were in that state that they would not have waited for one another in their
escape.

133. You think that the expedition which you sent to Mercy Bay was of the
utmost importance to their ultimate success?-I think it was.

134. Admiral Walcott.] Your deliberate opinion is, that to Captain M'Clure
.ttaches the merit of having solved the problem of the North-west Passage?-
Yes, I arn of that opinion.

135. Chairman.] Being the first man who made that circuit?-Yes; he proved
o.61. B it
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it perfectly; he proved it through the Prince of Wales's Strait, and he proved
it b- going along the west coast of Baring Island.

1360. Sir R. Peel.] But he never would have made the entire circuit except
it had been for the assistance he received from you at Mercy Bay?-I bave
stated that lie could have walked from that place to Beechey Island.

137. Mr. Gordon.] But that would have been only with great difficulty?--Yes.
138. Admiral Valcott.] In your opinion he was capable, so far as you could

judge, of reaching Beechey Island?--Yes.
139. Mr. Gordon.] The assistance whicl you gave to Captain M'Clure was

of the most essential importance in enabling him to perform the whole circuit?
-Certainlv: no doubt of it.

140. And without that it is doubtful whether lie could have done it ?-
Without it, it would have been doubtful, I think.

141. Captain Scobdll.] Were there any depôts of provisions on Melville
Island, independently of your being there?-No.

142. Then if you had not been there he would have found nothing to eat
there ?-No; nothing.

Captain John Washington, R.N., called in; and Examined.

Captain 143. Sir T. Herbert.] YOU are Hydrographer to the Admiralty ?-I am.
J. li'ahinrgton,

144. Do you consider that Captain M'Glure succeeded in ascertaining- the
North-west Passage ?-Undoubtedly he succeeded in discovering the North-
west Passage. I an not aware whether the Committee has attached any
particular ineaning to the actual making the passage, but in the commnon
acceptance of the word, I consider that he was one of the discoverers that there
was a passage.

145. Sir R. Peel.] Who were the others ?--I think probably some of Sir John
Franklin's crew.

146. Sir T. Herbert.] But the question being with respect to those who
sailed, or went or made the passage, has any one else done it, except Captain
M'Clure ?--Not at that particular point from Banks Land to Behring Strait.

147. And lie did it by sailing ?-Captain M'Clure did not do it by sailing.
148. But more than any one else ?--We want information upon that point;.

we do not know what Sir John Franklins crews may have done.
149. Chairnan.] You are supposing that some of Sir John Franklin's crew

discovered the North-west Passage; but there is no evidence of that?-I am
judging upon general grounds. The men being left at one point, and being
ascertained to be at another point, it is a fair ground of supposition that they
passed over the distance between the two points.

150. Where were they ?-Supposing this to be Beechey Island (pointing out
the spot on the chart), the graves of some of Franldin's crew were found there.
They were known to be there about April or May, or probably later, in 1846;
they had orders to go to the westward, and they were found here, at the mouth
the Great Fish river, in May 1850, by the Eskim6. How they reached from
that point to this we do not k:ow, but we do know this, that there is a water
communication to the southern part of Peel Sound. We know that there is
wvater communication along the north coast of America, as far as Cape
Nikolai, in Boothia Felix, leaving a tract of from 90 to 100 miles of which we
know nothing; but it is fair to presume that it is ice and water.

1.51. Mr. .Ellice.] But still that is not actually discovered ?--No.
152. C/wirman.] The facts vou have stated do not show that the North-west

Passage vas made by any one of those individuals ?-Supposing that it was
water in Victoria Strait, and supposing Franklin's crews to have gone by way of
that track, then they would have discovered the North-west Passage as com-
pletely as it was done by Captain M'Clure. The main continent of America
was circumnavigated if they made that passage.

153. Sir R. Peel.] Your opinion is that, if any party is entitled to the reward
for having made the North-west Passage, Sir John Franklin's expeditionis justly
entitled to it ?-I would not say "justly entitled to it," but entitled to be heard
upon it, as having a standing upon the question.

154. Admiral Walcott.] I wish to ask whether, in your deliberate opinion, you
have not arrived at the conviction that the problem of the North-west Passage
was solved by Captain M'Clure, and by Captain M'Clure alone, simply upon

this
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this ground, that he entered at one end and came out at the other, and that he
thus proved that it was possible to go by water from one end to the other, pro-
vided the water had not been frozen ?-Undoubtedly.

155. That is your opinion ?-Unquestionably ; that he did so in September
1850.

156. Captain ScobeiL] You described a kind of theory, according to whicl
you considered that it might be shown that Captain Franklin had performed the
North-west Passage ?-I said that if Captain Franklin did as I suppose, he was
the first person who effected the North-west Passage; and I may add, that
such is the opinion of Sir John Richardson, the highest possible authority on
all arctic affairs.

157. How do you make out that there is a North-west Passage, goin g from
'where he entered to the spot where the remains were found ?-The 100 miles
of Victoria Strait was the only link wanting; the whole of the north-west coast
of America had been discovered by prior explorers.

158. You mean that he would have made up the deficiecy ?-He would have
made up the wanting link.

159. But he would not himself have perforned the whole passage ?-Except
that Captain Franklin did hiniself discover a great deal of that coast in different
voyages, and some of his crew may have completed the whole.

i 6o. When you say that Captain M'Clure is one of those who have performed
the North-west Passage, and when you now admit that Captain Franklin did not
perform it, but only performed a portion which was not previously made out,
will you state what other person besides Captain M'Clure has performed the
North-west Passage ?-No one individual has actually discovered the whole
distance; what Captain M'Clure did was, that lie crossed over the unexplored
part, so as to connect the links ; but he did not do so in his ship.

161. He entered Behring Strait, he came to the Bay of Mercy, lie passed
over a gTeat distance on the ice, and he came to England by water ?-Un-
doubtedly he was the first to go over the whole distance; all that I wished to
do was, to guard myself from saying that he was the first discoverer of the
North-west Passage, and to state that I think it is quite possible that others may
have discovered it before.

162. When you contend that some one else may have made the North-west
Passage, do you mean from end to end, or a portion of it ?-A portion of it ; the
only portion required to solve the problem.

163. Should you put a person who merely made out the remuant of the
passage previously undiscovered on an equality with a person who had per-
formed the whole passage from end to end ?-I do not wish to put it in that
manner ; I only state the possible fact.

164. But you do not know as a fact that Captain Franklin did discover that
portion of the passage ?-No.

165. Mr. Ellice.] I gather fron your evidence that Captain M<Clure is the
first and only person who has gone from, sea to sea as the discoverer of the
North-west Passage ?--Yes.

166. There may be others who may have discovered it, but we have no evi-
dence of it ?-Just so.

167. Sir T. Herbert.] Do you know of any other way in which any person
bas gone from sea to sea, except that which has been accomplished by Captain
M'Clure ?-As far as we know, he is the only person who has done it. I am far
from wishing in any degree to diminish Captain M'Clure's merit; he and
his crew did their work gallantly and nobly, but I wish to guard the Committee
from pronouncing a decision upon the priority of a discovery which mnay be
proved to have been made by another; which possibly a few months may show
to have been made by another.

i68. Upon what grounds do you rest that supposition; you alude to Sir
John Franklin as having possibly made the prior discovery ?-I do.

169. Then the proof depends upon there being certain of his party still alive?
-Or some of bis journals or logs being brought home, that may prove how the
party reached the spot at which their remains were found.

170. Admiral Walcott.] But that would not prove that they reached Behring
Strait ?-No; but it would prove that the problem of the North-west Passage
was solved.

1 71. Se it is solved, because Captain M'Clure has gone from sea to sea ?-
06. B 2 But

Captain
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]But the discoverv of this passage cannot be attributed to any onc individual;
it is a series of exertions which has been continued for about 30 vears. Had
Captain M'Clure arrived at that spot w'ithout any one having p-eceded him
there. he could never have attempteid to cross either to Port Leopold or to
Beecliey Island; others have assisted him, and chiefly Captain Kellett, who lias
described the aid he rendered with great modesty. Kellett was the person that
held out the right hand of assistance to M'Clure in his precarious situation.
Without that aid it is possible that some one of the party might have survived
to reacli Beechey Island; but it is only a bare possibility.

172. Mr. EUice.] Is niot it the fact that Captain M'lure actually performed
the whole circuit hinself --- He lias actually done that. but lie profited greatly
by the voyages of others.

1 73. But what other people iad discovered, he has actually gone over him-
self, and lie has completed the whole by perforning the link that was wanting
before ?-Yes.

174. Admn iral Ilcott.) You must understand that there can be no desire on
the part of the Committee to detract froni the great merit due to the indomitable
perseverance and exertions which have distinguished all the Arctic discoverers,
and the great privations which thcy have gone tlirough ; but we are met here
simply to ascertain the point whether Captain M'Clure lias or has not solved
the prohlemi of the North-west Passage by having entered at one end and come
out at the other by water :-If I understand that the Comnittee is not to decide
the priority of discovery, I have not a word to say. That is the only point 1
wish to guard.

175. Captain .Scobell.] If me did give a decision upon the priority, have you
any strong ground for stating, in fact, anything amounting to proof that any
one else did it before Captain M'Clure ?-No but I would beg the Comnittee
to suspend their opinion till the result of the researches of the Hudson's Bay
travellers who have gone to the spot shall be known. It will be known in a few
months, or in a vear at the outside.

176. You are~aware that Captain M'Clure's orders were to go to Melville
Island fron Behring Strait ?-Yes.

177. Of course he "as not deprived of the previous discoveries of other
voyagers to aid him ?-Certainly.

17S. Availing himself of the previous discoveries, lie made the whole passage ?
-le did.

i 7. N-ir. Gordon.] Are not the solving of the problem and the performance
of the passage two very distinct things; even supposing Sir John Franklin and
his crew to have done all that you suppose them to have done, then they would,
it is true. have solved the problemn by ascertaining that there was water the
whole w ay; but they vould not have performed the whole passage along the
north coast of Anierica?-No. possibly not.

i8i. That is what Captain M'Clure has done, and which no one has done
before P-Yes.

18S. Sir T Ierbert.] Do you suppose that any one of the party of Captain
Franklin could have gone out by Behring Strait -- It is not impossible; we
have no proof to the contrary.

182. Supposing we adopted your supposition, that soine of them arrived at
the spot that you pointed out, do you think it probable that they could have
gone on from thence, and gone out by Behring Strait ?-It is not probable;
it is possible.

S3. Mr. Ece.] I gather from vour evidence, that from the information
which the Admiralty have received, you doubt very much whether Captain
M'Clure would have got safely through the passage had it not been for the aid
which he derived from Captain Kellett ?-I think it is very doubtful; it is
possible; but I think Captain Kellett contributed nost mnaterially to their
assistance.

184. Mr. Stephenson.] Do you not consider that the arrival of Lieutenant
Pin fron Captain Kellett's vessel vas in fact the first demonstration of a
Nortl-west Passage actually existing ?-No; Captain M'Clure had crossed over
the ice to Melville Island before, and left a notice.
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Captain Robert John Lernesurier M'Clure, R. N., called in; and Examined..

185. Chairman]. YOU are aware what this Committee is. assembled' for. Captain
The Comnmittee are desirous of having from you a short and correct, but R.- -1Cre
suecinet statement of your passage from the Pacific to the Atlantic Ocean. R.N.

Will you. state first the substance of your orders.?-I have a copy of my orders, 3 July 1855.
which I wiill hand in.

(The sane was read, (sfolows :]

Her Majesty's Ship " Enterprise," Oahee,
29 June 1860.

Memo.-So soon as Her Majesty's ship under your cominand is fully complete with
provisionis. fuel, and water, you will iake the best of your way to Cape Lisburne, keep-
ing a good' look-ouit for "e 1-lrald " or casks, and firing guns in foggy weather after passing
St. LawrCece. 'Ihe whalers also mnay afford yom information of our progress.

Should you obtain, no intelligence. you will 1nderstand that I intend to make the pack
close to the Ainerican .shore. and pursue the firat fikvourable opening west of the coast
streaim, pressing Jorwards towards Melville Island. In the event of meeting land, it is
most probable iliat T would piursue the southern shore, but conspienous marks will be
erected if practicable, and information buried at a 10-foot radius.

As it is necessary to bc prepared for the contingency of' your not being able to follow,
by the ice closing in, 0r the severity of the weather, you will in that case keep the
"Iavestigator" as close to the edge of the pack as is consistent with ier safety, and remain
there until the season compels you to depart, wlien you will look into Kotzebue Sound for
the " Plover," or information regarding ber position, and having deposited under her
charge a twelvemonth's provision, you will proceed to Valparaiso, replenish, and return to
the §traits, bearing in mind that the months of June and July are thc nost favourable.
A letter from the hydrographer relative to the variation of the compass is annexed, and
you wilH. bear in imind that the value of these observations will be grcatly enhanced by
obtaining the variation with the ship's head at every second. or fou·th point round the
compass, occasionally, and she should be awung for deviation in, harbour as often as oppor-
tunity may offer.

Should you not fiid the "]Plover," or that any casualty lias happened to render lier
inefficient as a depôt, you will take her place; and if (as Captain Kellett supposes)
Kotzebue Souid 'has proved too exposed for a winter harbour, you. vill proceed to Grantley
Harbour, leaving a notice to that effect on Chamisso Island. The attention of your officers
is to be called, and you will read to your ship's company the remarks of Sir J. Richardson
concerning flic communication with the Esquimaux contained in the Arctic Report received
at Plymouth.

Your operations in the season of 1851 canngt be guided by me, ior is there any occasion
t.o urge you to proced tothe N. E.; yet it will be highly desirable previous to entering
the pack that you completed provisions from the whalers, and obtained as much reindeer's
meat as possible; Captain Kellett's narrative will point out where the latter is to be lad
in most abundance, and where coal can be picked up on the beach; but husband the latter
article during the winter, by using ail the drift-wood in your power.

In the event of leaving the Straita this season, you wil take anyweak or sickly nien out
of the "I Plover," and replace them from your crew, affording Commander Moore all the
assistance in your power, and leaving with her Mr. Miertching, the interpreter; instructions
with regard to whose accommodation you have received, andwill convey to the Captain of
the "I Plover."

(signed) Rd. Collinson,
To Coummander M'Clure, Captamn.

H. M. S. "Investigator.Ct

Slouid it be the opinion of' Commander Moore that the services of the " Investigator's
ship's company in exploring parties during the spring would be attended with mnaterial
benefit to the object of the expedition, he wil, notwithstanding these orders, detain you for
the purpose; but care niust be taken that your efficiency as a sailing vessel is not cripipled
by the parties iot returning in time for the opening of' the ice.

cc R. C."
i 86. Will you now have the goodness to point out on the chart exactly what

you did; will you state when you left England, and the course you took?
We left England on 20th January 1850. A few days after that I received
orders from Captain Collinson, in case of parting company, to rendezvous at
the Straits of Mlagellan. A few days subsequently we parted company by
accident, and dlid not meet again until the 17th of April, in the Straits of Ma-
gellan. On the 20th, we left the. Straits, towed out by the " Gorgon" steamer,
and parted comnpany the same night in a heavy gale of wind, and did not meet
again till we came to England. On arriving at Oabu, in the Sandwich Islands,

o.61. B 3 1 received



MINUTES OF EVIDENCE TAKEN BEFORE THE

Captain
I. J. L. iClure,

a.s.

3 Juld 1855.

I received orders from Captain Collinson to make the best of my way to Behring's
Straits.

1 S7 . What was the place whence you received those orders -- It was in the
Sandwich Islands. And in the event of not being able to get into the ice that
year, to return to Valparaiso; and, in that event, to return again in the follow-
ing year to penetrate the ice, and to follow him along the coast of America,
and inake the best of my way towards the north-east, towards Melville Island.
All other orders were left to my own discretion. In the latter end of July
1 fell in with the " Herald," Captain Kellett, off Cape Lisburne. I commu-
nicated with him, and gave him a copy of my orders. I had imagined that
Captain Collinson had preceded me into the ice, and was anxious to follow him.
Captain Kellett gave me permission, but in the course of the afternoon made
a signal to me that I had better wait 48 hours to see whether Captain Collin
son arrived.

188. Captain Scobell.] That was the same Captain Kellett that you met at
Melville Island afterwards '.-The same officer. I signaled back to say that the
service was of such importance that I could not remain upon my own respon-
sibility. Captain Kellett gave me no further orders, and I proceeded, Then,
on the 6th of August, I went round Point Barrow, meeting with different
obstructions, and went along the coast of North America, along this track
(pointing out the sane on the chari), with various stoppages. And it appears
that I passed Captain Pullen at the mouth of Mackenzie River. In September
we made Baring Island. I landed and took possession of it in the name of
Her Majesty, and called a height Nelson's Head. I then went up a strait,
to which I gave the nanie of Prince of Wales Strait, as far as 73° north
latitude, and 117° longitude. The ice then came before the north-easterly wind
from Barrow Straits, and prevented any further progress in that direction.

i Sq. How near were vou then to the extreme end of Prince of Wales's
Strait ?-We were about 20 miles; I was then beset, and drifted down the
Straits again round two small islands here (pointùing out the same), and was
finally frozen in off Princess Royal Islands. We drifted in the ice with different
degrees of danger and difficulty amongst shoals and grounded ice; and got
finally frozen in on the 9th of October 1850. When we were frozen in I
crossed over and took possession of the land un the east side of the Strait,
called Prince Albert Land, after his Royal Highness. And when the ice was
firm, on the 21st of October I started with a sledge to ascertain if the water in
Prince of Wales Strait communicated with that of Barrow Strait, which would
prove the existence of a North-west Passage. On the 26th I arrived at a
point, which I called Point Russell, and at an elevation of several hundred feet,
had an opportunity of seeing, with a very clear horizon, that this was one mass
of heavy ice; which established, in my mind, the existence of a passage.
The ship remained in her position for nine months, till July 1851. On the
14th Julv, when the ice broke up, we drifted about, and on the 14th of August
I was as far as this again (pointing out the spot), and again met with obstruc-
tion : the ice came ln from Barrow Straits and prevented our getting any
further. I then determined upon trying to the westward of Baring Island.

i uo. Upon the second time, did you get any further in Prince o ales
Strait than you had done before ?-No, I was near the same spot. Then on
the 14th of August, finding that 1 could not proceed in that direction,
I determined to endeavour and make a passage to the westward of Baring
island.

19 . Had you previously travelled across the island, so as to know the width
of it ?-No, 1 had not.

19-2. Admiral WValcottj Why did you make no attempt to communicate vith
Melville Island, when you reached the furthest extremity of Prince of Wales
Inlet -It was then October, and it was too late to travel;. and the following
vear I had parties in other directions, which I thought more important to
explore for the object of the expedition, which was to find traces of Sir John
Franklin ; I had parties in three directions. On the 14th of August I bore up,
and ran to the westward of this island.

193. I wish to know the distance from the extreme point which you reached
with your ship, till you arrived round the point at the furthest end of Baring
Island, whence you ultimately communicated with Melville Island ?-The
distance froin this point round there (pointing out the sane on the chart), was

about
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about 600 miles; we had great obstacles, and were very near being wrecked
several times along the north-west coast of Baring Island, where it was so,
exposed to the ice. The water was so very scanty that I had barely room to,
get the vessel between the rocks and the ice without listing her over, to
prevent the boats being carried away against the ice, and falling upon the
rocks. After several escapes we managed upon the 24th of September to get
into what I have termed the Bay of Mercy.

194. What was the prevailing wind at that time ?-The winds were variable.
Occasionally we had strong gales from the southward, which lasted two or three
days, but they had no effect upon the mass of ice. The first open water only
extended about half a mile from the shore; we went off in the pack, but by the-
use of gunpowder we managed to extricate ourselves from the ice, and we
succeeded in getting along this coast, where, on the 24th of September, we-
ran ashore upon a reef, and on the following morning we got into a small bay.

i95. '1hat was in the year 1851 3-On the 24th of September 1851.
i96. Sir T. Herbert.] What reef is that ?-A small reef consisting of debris

coming out of a large ravine; when the ice breaks out in the summer, a large
rush of water carries the debris out, and upon that we ran ashore.

197. Will you mention the point ?-Providence Point. There I remained
until I left the ship, by the order of Captain Kellett, in June 1853; the ice
never broke out of the bay during the time I was here, and in the summer of
1852 there was no water whatever seen in this part of the Straits, but there was
a channel of water about six miles in length along the cliff of Banks Island;
that was the onI water we saw; the consequence was, that the vessel could
not move, and there she remained.

19 S. What did you do during the time that you were frozen in there --We
got in there, as I have stated, on the 24th of September 1851 ; where the vessel
was frozen in; and in the following year, in April 1852, I crossed over with a
sledge to Winter Harbour, in Melville Island.

199. Chairman.] How many were with you ?-Six men and an officer. I
there found a notice from the present Captain M'Clintock, who had been de-
spatched from the " Resolute" under Captain Austin, and had arrived there the-
previous year; he stated that the vessels were in different directions, looking
for Sir John Franklin, and that a depôt was left at Beechey Island, and also at
Port Leopold, which [ w-as aware of before. After having examined this, and,
left my notice, I returned to my ship in May 1852. The ice during that
summer never opened at all except along Banks Land; and the consequence
was, that the ship never moved. Then, in April 1853, Captain Kellett sent
Lieutenant Pim across to me, stating that the " Resolute" was at Dealy Island;
upon the following day I crossed over to Captain Kellett with a sledge's crew,
and then I received instructions which led to the abandonment of the ship.

200. Admirali Walcott.] What was the distance of your ship from Winter
Harbour ?- One hundred and fifty miles.

201. What distance from the nearest point of Melville Island?-About 60.
I had a survey held upon the crew, according to the orders which I received
from Captain Kellett, and allowed the men to volunteer to remain out for that
season, in the hope of getting the vessel through ; 20 men w-ere the least that
I could undertake to attempt to navigate her home with; and Captain Kellett
very kindly acceded to my wishes to attempt to get her through, if I could get
the men. However, only four were found to volunteer. Consequently, on the
3d of June 1853, I left the ship, and joined Captain Kellett in the ' Resolute."

202. Chairman.] Will you now trace your course after that ?-In August
1853, we broke out in a gale of wind, expecting to run down Barrow
Straits; but we were stopped by ice in Byam Martin Channel. There we
remained till September, when a gale of wind broke out again ; and, in a heavy
snow-storm, we got stopped here (pointing oui the spot on the chart), 30 miles
south-west of Cape Cockburn, where the vessel was eventually frozen in, in
October of the same year ; and in the following year, in April 1854, orders were
received from Sir Edward Belcher for myself and crew to proceed to Beechey
Island and join the " North Star."

203. How did you get there ?-By a sledge, over the ice. I arrived at the
"North Star" 27th April 1854.

204. Admiral Walcolt.] That ice was upon frozen water, not ice upon land?
-Certainly not; it was frozen water. In August 1854, we left Beechey Island
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in the "North Star, and catne home through Lancaster Sound, and across Baf-
fm's Bay to Lievel,. where I removed into the " Phoenix," by the order of Sir
Edward7Belche-r, and finally reached England, across the Atlantic, on the 3oth
of September 1854. That is an epitonie of my four vears and nine nonths'
service.

205. Captain Scnbell.] When you parted from Captain Collinson, did any
conmunication take place, either in writing or by signal. as to vour intentions
-No ; the only orders I received from Captain Collinson were verbal orders to
keep company with hii.

206. Dic vou telegraph anything to him i--No, nothing.
207. Did von telegraph your intention of running into the ice and taking

vour chance .-- I think that refers to a telegraph which I made to Captain
Kellett. It was after parting company with ('aptain Kellett. -le made a signal
to sav that i had better wait 48 hours, to give Captain Collinson a chance of
coming up. I was of opinion that he had already gone on before me, and I

a signal then that I could not wait upon my owu responsibility. knowing
the importance of the service; Captain Kellett gave me no further orders, and
I proceeded.

20$. Dii vou state vour intention of running vour ship into the ice - Cer-
tainly not by signal. I was with Captain Kellett on board his own ship, and
there we talked of it, and i told him it was mv intention to go in.

209. Admiral WalcoU.) Your opinion was that Captain Collinson had pre-
ceded vou -- Yes: but 1 found afterwards that Captain Collinson had not come
up to Behrings Straits. le had left Oahu before me, but he had not arrived
at Behring's Straits. I was there a fortnight before him.

2 1 o. Captain Scobell.) Supposing Captain Kellett lad not communicated
to vou bv Lieutenant Pim. had you formed any design what vour next step
,would be ?-Yes; 1 lad made arrangements for sending half my crew home.

211. In what way -Eight of them were to go bv the " Mackenzie," and the
remaining 20 by Beecli ey Island; they were to start six days after Lieutenant
Pim arrived on the 15th, the day on vhich they ultimately started to come to
Captain Kellett.

2 12. How long- would that have been after Lieutenant Pim reached you?-
1 had made arrangements for them to start itine days after the day on which
Lieutenant Pim arrived.

21.3. What provisions had vou left ?-I had 12 rnonths' provisions for the crew
I intended to retain on board: I intended to retain half till 1854, in the hope
of navigating the ship through in the season of 1853.

214. Knowing what vou now do of all the circumstances, what do you think
would have been your prospect of escape, if Captain Kellett had not sent
Lieutenant Pim to vou?-My opinion is the same now as it was then: I con-
sider that we should have lost four men ; there were four men so weak that
I tiought they would have perished upon the road.

21:. vo you think you would have made your escape -- I do.
216. If you had not found provisions in Beechy Island, there was another

depôt that you knew of?-Yes; I was with Sir James Ross wvhen it was planted
there, and from the notice I received froin Captain M'Clintock I thought the road
was perfectly secure. The depôt at Beechey Island was a small one, but the
other was a large depôýt. with 12 months provisions for 140 men.

217. Mr. Ellice.] Who first laid down upon the chart the outline of Banks
Land?-1 did.

21S. Was the channel, which appears laid down here, delineated in any pre-
vious chart -- Not at all.

219. I 1 short. the whole of Banks Land, and the north--west part of Prince
Albert Land was laid clown first by you? -The whole of Banks Land (or Baring
Island, with the exception of the part from Point Hamilton to Point Russell,)
and Prince Aibert Land from Wvnniats furthest to Prince Albert Sound.
. 220. Captain Sco/Lll.) What was the whole period from your entering
Behring's Straits to your reaching England ?--We entered Behring's Straits on
the 26th of Jul 1 S50, and we arrived in England on the 30th of September
1854.

221. Sir R. Peel.) You said that you went up twice, or rather you remained
for the winter in Prince of Wales Strait ?-We remained there one winter.

222. i understand you to say, when you got up to the-top of Prince of Wales
Strait,
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.Strait, you went across to Melville Island?-No; in Prince of Wales Strait I
left the ship, and travelled to Point Russell only.

223. You went round by Baring Island to Mercy Bay ?-Yes.
224. And from Mercy Bay you went across to Melville. Island ?-Yes.
225. And then you returned to Mercy Bay ?-Yes.
226. And afterwards an exploring party from Captain Kellett came across to

you at Mercy Bay ?-Yes.
227. If that exploring party had not come across to you at Mercy Bay, was

it vour intention to have endeavoured to continue round through Barrow
Straits ?-Yes; I was going to send half my crew home, and to retain the other
half to endeavour to navigate home.

228. You said that you proposed sending your men by Barrow Straits?-
Twenty of them.

229. How did you know that there was a passage that way ?-Because Parry
came up that way.

230. If vou were going to send your men by Barrow Straits in the following
year, why did not you go yourself and make the passage at once ?-Because I
wanted to bring the ship home.

231. If the exploring party from Captain Kellett bad not joined you, would
vou still have continued the passage which you were successful in naking?-
Certainly, that was my intention; I had made arrangements for it. In my
letter to the Admiralty I stated that that was the course I intended to pursue.

232. Mr. Gordon.] And you believe that you would have been able to carry
that out ?-Yes, with the loss of those four men.

233. Sir R. Peel.] It was your determination to have continued the passage?
- Certainly.

234. Captain Scobell.] What was the disease of those four men whom you
thought you should have lost ?-Scurvy, from insufficiency of food; they were
on very scanty allowance; only eight ounces of meat.

235. Your men were on short allowance ?-They were on very scanty two-
thirds allowance the last 20 months.

236. Mr. Gordon.] The arrival of the party from Captain Kellett converted
what was before a possibility into a certainty ?-Yes ; I think there is no doubt
that many of them would have got home perfectly safe under any circum-
stances.

237. Sir ' Herbert.] When you left the " Investigator," you left considerable
property in ber, did you not ?-I left all my things behind, with the exception
of a portmanteau.

238. Did you get any remuneration for what you left ?-I did; I received
1001. from the Admiralty.

239. Was that the full value of what you left P-No, it was not the full value;
I made no specific demand. I asked for the allowance due to my rank, and
I received 1001.

240. Did your men receive anything for what they left in the ship ?-They
-received 31. a man, according to the instructions.

241. Was that equal to the value of the property which the crew had in the
ship ?- No, it certainly was not equal to it; but they received a great quantity
of presents.

242. Presents from whom ?-Presents from the Admiralty in clothing. They
gave them an excellent suit of box-cloth and flannels every year.

243. Sir R. PeeL.] In fact, as regards remuneration, they were satisfied?-
I think so.

244. Captain Scobell.] And the men had double pay ?--They had double pay
the whole time.

245. After you left Captain Kellett, did you at any time run your ship into
the ice, and take your chance in the ice ?-Only once or twice I did that. It
is only in cases of emergency that you do that, because the great object is to
keep out of the ice, so as to have the vessel in command, for when once it is in
the ice. it is helpless.

246. Mr. Gordon.] A previous witness has stated that in bis opinion, if your
ship had been furnished with any. steam power, you would have been able,
when you saw open water towards Melville Island, to force your way into it,
and to have made. your passage ; is that your opinion ?-Yes, I certainly arm of
opinion; knowingwhat has been effected sinceby steam-vessels, that if I had had
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Ca¥tain steam power. I should have gone through in 1851. It was a very open season,
R. J. L. f'I1C!ure, and my impression is that I should have got through, especially as the uncer

taintv of the nature of the ice is so great, that what appears entirely to-day im-
3 July 8 possible. is to-morrow changed, and becomes perfectly open water; although

Captain Kelletts testimony upon the subject is certainly worthy of consideration.
But that is my impression.

247. You think you would have been able to perform the passage if you had
had steam power ?-I think so; but I might have met with the same result as
the " Resolute."

248. Captain Scobell.] You left notices for Captain Collinson ?-I was not
aware that Captain Collinson was behind mne; but I left notices which he
ultimatelv found.

249. You saw no trace uf Captain Franklin ?-None whatever.

Veneris, 6° dlie Juiji, 1855.
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WILLTAM ALEXANDER MACKINNON, EsQ., IN THE CHAIR.

Sir Roderick Impey Mfurchison, called in; and Examined.

250. Ciarman.] WILL you have the kindness to state your position in con-
nexion with the Royal Geographical Society -I have been on former occasions
President of the Royal Geographical Society. I am now Director-General of
the Geological Survey of the United Kingdom.

251. In your capacity of President of the Royal Geographical Society have
you turned your attention to the Polar Regions ; have you paid much attention
to the different expeditions whicli have been ordered in that direction for the
purpose of discovering a North-west Passage ?-Unquestionably I have. . I may
state, that in the vear 1845 I was President of the Royal Geographical Society,
and it was in that year that my old friend, Sir John Franklin, sailed from
this country. I was privy to all the preparations for that expedition, and took,
very naturally, a warmii interest in it. Having known Sir John Franklin for
upwards of 20 years, and having watched his progress through life, I, of course,
was greatly interested, perhaps more than most civilians, in the success of his
efforts to effect the North-west Passage. I may add, that in the years 1852 and
1853 I was again President of the Geographical Society, and as public interest
and public sympathy were at that time to a great extent excited by the feeling
that there was little hope of recovering Sir John Franklin if strenuous
efforts were not made, I took au active part, as President of the Geographical
Society, in stinulating Her Majesty's Government to make those exertions
which other geographers as well as myself thought most desirable. I had
on those occasions every reason to hope for a successful termination of the
search after Sir John Frandin, seeing the able officers that went out in com-
mand of the various ships.

252. Have vou had an opportunity of ascertaining the conduct of Captains
Collinson, M'Clure, and Kellett ?-I have never hesitated to say, and have
expressed my opinion elsewhere, that Captain MI'Clure was decidedly entitled to
any recompense or honour that Her Majesty might be pleased to confer upon
hin, for having been the first person who, to our knowledge, had gone through
from the east to the west, in attempting to make that passage. But whilst I
make that observation, and am extremely anxious that Captain M'Clure should

have
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have due honour and recompense, I am bound to say, that a discovery has
been made since I formed the above opinion, which ought, I think, to induce
any public body who assigns honour to Captain M'Clure, not to forget that
which is due to the memory of the brave men who have died, Franklin and others.
For that those men whose relies were found near the mouth of the Back River
have effected -what must be called a North-west Passage, cannot be doubted
by any person who has studied the subject. I am not now going to offer My
opinion (which is worthless probably) as to where Sir John Franklin may have
been, or how occupied, in that space of time which elapsed between the period
when we know that he was at Beechey Island and the period when bis party
were last seen alive in the latitude of King William's Island, or farther to the
south, near the mouth of Back River. It is very possible, as some geographers
think, and I am disposed to think so myself, that, with bis adventurous and bold
character, Franklin did endeavour to proceed to the north; and I confess I was
alwavs one of those who thought that, having failed to get to the south, he
would try to get to the north through Wellington Channel. It is not by any
means clear, because we have now heard of bis efforts near to his old adventures
along the north coast of America, that therefore he did not previously attemnpt
those extensive northern explorations which many of us gave hini credit for.
But be that as it may, we have I think unquestionable proof, as derived froi the
articles belonging to him, from the evidence of the Esquimaux, and from all
the facts narrated by Dr. Rae, that bis party arrived very near to the mouth
of Back River; and it is fair, I think, to infer that bis ships were not very far
from him, because a party was seen dragging a boat, if not boats. Now, in
doing this, he strictly obeyed the orders of the Admiralty. He and his party
lost their lives in steering to the south-west, and had absolutely reached the
mouth of the river which had been explored by Sir George Back. Now, as
the delineation of the coast of America, and the existence of a water-channel
along it, were previously ascertained, it follows, that when the mouth of the
Back or Fish River was reached from the North-east, the North-west Passage
was accomplished.

253. What evidence have you that he got there by water; is not it possible
that he got one of his boats and dragged it over land in the hope of meeting
with water ?-It is possible, but I think there are other grounds for the inference
that the ship might not be very far off. The Esquimaux stated that books and
utensils, besides the ornaments which were brought away, were carried by the
party. I think it is very unlikely that men struggling for their lives would carry
books, particularly heavy books. I therefore apprehend that the ships were not
far off, and that they probably were plundered by the Esquimaux; I however
only state this as a hypothesis. But in answer to the question, allow me to say,
that if Sir John Franklin got to the.mouth of Back River, partly by water, partly
by sea, and partly by ice over water, he did exactly by another route, that which
Captain M'Clure las since doue in the "Investigator;" for there is no passage
open to a ship by the northern part of Banks's Land. I beg to state enpha-
tically, that I do not make this observation with a view to detract in the slightest
degree from the merit of Captain M'Clure; I think him eminéntly entitled to
all the honour and reward that may be awarded to him. But I hope that this
Commnittee, in recording their opinion of the merits of Captain M'Clure, will
couple it in some way with a record of their high sense of the merits of mv
illustrious friend, Sir John Franklin, who had accomplished so much, and had
obeyed his orders so faithfully.

254. Can you state what was the flow of the tides in that particular channel?
-We know that better from the evidence of Dr. Rae than from any other source.
He states that on the 20th of August in the year 1851, when he was upon the
eastern coast of Victoria Land, blocks of ice were :Rowing southward. Then,
again, if you collate tlie facts, that blocks of ice and the-current of the stream
were flowing soutbward, that Dr. Rae lad defined the land up to that point,
and had discovered portions of wood which he believed might have come from
one of those ships, with this other fact, that Captain Collinson has brought
home remnants which he has no hesitation in stating, belonged, in his belief,
to the " Erebus" and " Terror," [ think you have all the evidences before you
which should entitle you to pay the compliment which is due to the merits of
Franklin and his associates.

255. Is there not a dispute about the tide flowing, as you say, fron the north;
0.61. C 2 could

Sir

6 July 1855.



MINUTES OF EVIDENCE TAKEN BEFORE THE

Sir could it not have gone through Barrow Strait, or some other opening on the
R. I. Murc/dson. east side?-From Barrow Strait it would come down Peel Sound, no doubt.

-- There is no other real opening that I am aware of.
6 July 1855. 256. Is it not possible that there might have been some channel on the east

side ?-You must examine persons more competent than myself to speak to
that point. But I beg to observe that the east side of Boothia is well defined.
With respect to the litile channel whicli goes by the name of Bellot Channel,
it lias even been doubted (as geographers will tell you) whether it is a channel.
It was frozen over when surveyed, and that is the only little channel (and if it
exists as such, it is a very narrow one indeed) by wlich anything could have
gone through. The only really navigable track for vessels must have been
down Peel Sound.

257. Mr. .Ellice.] You have no doubt that Captain M'Clure is the first
person who has passed from sea to sea ?-Not a doubt.

25S. And that lie has defined upon the chart a passage between sea and sea,
on both sides of which passage the land has been surveyed and marked
Certainly.

259. And that that passage lias been discovered and laid down onlv by
Captain Mi'Clure ?-I am aware that between the western point of Melville
Island and the north-eastern point of Banks's Land, there is a frozen mass
which has never been seen to melt: no ship can pass it.

6o. I observe on this chart that the only passage between the one ocean
and the other vhich has been perfectly surveyed is this between Baring Island
and Prince Albert Land (pointinq out the same) ; vill you tell me by whom
the outline of that land has been surveyed and traced ?-The outline- of all this
land was unquestionably first surveyed and traced by Captain M'Clure. It was
subsequently surveyed by Captain Collinson, who came up to this point
(pointing out the spot on the map), and went a little bevond the spot to which
Captain M'Clure had advanced ; and then lie returned and went as far as that
on his return. But it was first surveyed by Captain M'Clure; and it was of
course by the assistance of Captain Kellett. and the party that he sent. Lieu-
tenant Pim and others, that Captain M'Clure and his crew were enabled to
traverse this strait.

261. Therefore we have in evidence the fact that M'Clure was the first officer
vho made the only passage which is delineated upon the chart between ocean

and ocean ; because this other channel to which vou have referred is only a
supposititious one, and is n part undefined ?--The other channel is to a con-
siderable extent undefined.

262. That channel has not yet been determined by any survey, and its existence
is supposititious?-The conclusion to which many geographers have come,
including the former Hydrographer of the Admiralty, who has prepared a
notice on this subject, is that which I have expressed.

263. But upon the chart that channel remains undefined ?--It does.; but it
is known that the boat and the people had got down to near the mouth of the
Back River.

264. Admiral Walcott.] I understand you to state that you are decidedly of
opinion, that no question remains upon your mind as to the fact that Captain
M'Clure has perfected the passage from ocean to ocean ?--Certainly.

265. With respect to Sir John Franklin, I am sure the feeling of the Committee
goes entirely with vours as to bis eminent merits, and we do not question the
possibility of Sir John Franklin and bis ships having got close to King William's
Land; but we have no positive proof that lie did reach there with his ship, and
that le night not have hauled his boat over land; whereas we have positive
proof that Captain M'Clure, partly in bis ship, and partly by treading upon
frozen water, completed the passage from ocean to ocean ?-Clearlv. With
regard to Sir John Franklin, I leave it to the Committee to make sucli allusion
as they think right, after hearing the evidence. It is certain, I repeat, that lie
or some of bis party did reach the mouth of Back River.

266. Mr. Ellice.] Are you aware what -Captain Kennedy savs, who com-
manded Lady Franklin's expedition, as to this supposititious channel; lie says,Having satisfied ourselves that we were upon the west side of North Somer-
set, it became a question how far the sea or channel before us might prove con-
tinuous with the opening laid down in our chart between Cape Walker and
Cape Burney. We had arrived at a point where, in pursuance of a plan I had

the



SELECT COMMITTEE ON ARCTIC EXPEDITION.

the privilege of submaitting to Lady Franklin before leaving England, the future
direction of our route must be regulated by the appearance this western sea
might present; if such as to afford a reasonable prospect of Franklin's having
passed through to the south" (that is by this western channel), " our proper
course would have been south also, but on examining the coast line to the
northward nothing could be seen but a continuous barrier of land, extending
from North Somerset to an extensive land which we could distinguish on the
other side of the channel, and which we have since ascertained to be the Prince
of Wales' Land of Captain Ommaney." Now if Captain Kennedy is right in
that, it would seem to contravert the supposition of there being a through chan-
nel there ?-Since that time the coasts have been surveyed on each side
of Peel Sound. The coasts of the land to the south of Cape Walker and Prince
of Wales' Land, and North Somerset, have been defined on both sides, as you
see by the Admiralty charts; consequently Peel Sound is not a thing of imagi-
nation: and a ship night go down that sound under favourable circunstances.
It is only a question as to the small distance between the point where Franklin's
ships were supposed to have got, and the extremity of that sound as already
defined. But g-ive me leave to say, that if Captain Kennedy had followed the
suggestions (I will not say instructions) of Lady Franklin-for he commanded
one of the several ships that that nobleminded woman bas sent out in search
of her husband-if he had followed her suggestions to go direct south, he
positively would have come upon the remains of Franklin's party, and would
have been the first person to have discovered them.

267. I understand that the reason why he did not go south, but went north,
was because of that barrier which he perceived to exist, and which he describes
as " a continuous barrier of land." Has there been any subsequent survey to
disprove that ?--Captain Kennedy says that the land extended to the north, and
was united as he thought to the land he was upon. He made an immense
journey to define the outline of North Somerset, but he made no effort to
go to the south.

268. Captain Scobell.] With respect to Sir John Franklin, is not what you
have stated, with respect to part of his route, at the most only a probable
supposition ?-I only wish, with all deference, to rely upon that whici is fact
with respect to Sir John Franklin, that he arrived at the mouth of Back
River.

269. Supposing he arrived at that point in the most favourable way you
suppose for your theorv, yet when the question is with respect to a North.west
Passage from sea to sea, could you compare that circuitous route with the com-
paratively direct route of Captain M'Clure ?-My answer is, that if this route
by the coast of America should prove to be the only navigable route by
water, or by lines of water (which is the opinion of many eminent navigators,
including Sir Francis Beaufort), then unquestionably the man who made it, if
he was alive, would deserve the honour; but I admit that Captain M'Clure bas
been the first to make this passage in his own person. On that account, and for
his geographical exploration of this very difficult region, and for having abso-
lutely passed over this portion of ice, which separated the one from the other,
I repeat that he is highly deserving of -honour. I only suggest that the word
"a " might be substituted for the word "I the," by calling it "l a North-west
Passage," in case it should, as I believe it will certainly turn out that there
are two North-west Passages.

70. Sir T. Acland.] Is not the principal object of the evidence you have
given to recommend that in any report which the Committee may make
respecting the exertions made to discover a North-west Passage, we should not
attempt to anticipate the future by speaking of "Ithe" North-west Passage,
when, according to your belief, it may appear that there are other passages
which have been very nearly, if not quite, attained by other exertions ?-It is
not merely my belief, but the belief of men whose opinions are entitled to very
great weight. Among them is the late Hydrographer to the Admiralty, who
supervised all the Arctic charts, who was privy to the origin of every expedition
which bas been sent out, andwhose opinion upon any Arctie question is entitled
to as high credit as that of any man alive.

271. You stated that. you, had seen a very valuable paper upon the general
.subject, drawn. up by Admiral Beaufort ?-Yes.

272. Will it be possible for the Committee to have that paper before them if they
o.61. C 3 should
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should so desire it ?-I am not authorised to communicate any such paper; I have
here. however, a short extract from it, which perhaps the Committee will allovw

ie to read. Admiral Beaufort writes, " When future navigators, whalers, or
others, induced bytheir pursuits, and encouraged by open seasons, dash through,
to whoin will they look back as their real pioneers? Banks' Strait and
Investigator Strait will never be attempted by them, but a few hours' fair wind
and fine weatherwould run down the track of the "Enterprise"from thewestward.
and lead direct up Peel Sound, through which the " Erebus " and " Terror "
must have passed, if the ships themselves bore their unfortunate but heroic
crews io the entrance of Fisi River. Those, then, are the men whom future
navigators will honour as the boafijide discoverers of the North-west Passage.
Let due honours and rewards be shiowered on the heads of those who have
noblv toiled In deciphering the puzzling Arctic labyrinth, and who have each
contributed their hard-earned quota: but let the name of discoverer of the
North-west Passage be for ever linked to that of Sir John Franklin." That is
the opinion of Admiral Beaufort.

273. Will you have the goodness to inform the Committee whether Captain
Collinson did not, both by ship and upon land, proceed immediately in the
direction of Peel Sonud towards the spot which you suppose Sir John Franklin
to have reached ?-Unquestionably ; it is quite manifest.

274. So that the value of Captain Collinson's expedition in the direction of
Victoria Strait will depend in a great degree upon what discoveries Sir John
Franklin may ultimately be found to have made; the two things are con-
nected together?-Yers: Captain Collinson has the great merit of having
proceeded in a ship from the west to the east further than any other navi-
gator. and of having conducted that ship under very difficult circumstances
between the packs of ice and the land, and of having reached so far, that he was
within a very short distance of the point where he might have rescued Sir John
Franklin andi his crews, had they been alive. I may further be allowed to
sav that the honour of having extricated himself from all those difficulties,
and having brouglit back his ship safe to England, is a distinction which merits
the gratitude of the country, and any recompense which it may think fit to
grant him. That which I have stated witli respect to Sir John Franklin is not
merely the opinion of Admiral Beaufort, but also of Sir John Richardson, as
expressed in the " Times" newspaper, and of the American geographers who
have sifted the question. It is the opinion of Dr. Hawk, of the Geographical
Society of New York, and of Mr. Grenel, who las spent more money in the
search after Franklin than any other person in Amenrica, having nobly sent out
entire expeditions for that purpose. I am not nerely the spokesman for myself,
but for mîany geographers, both in this country and in America.

275-. Sir T. A cland.] Did I rightly understand you to say that the discovery
of Peel Sound and Victoria Channel, if it ever be thoroughly substantiated, is
inucl more likely to be practically important than any other that las been
brought before us - That is the opinion of Sir Francis Beaufort and of those
persons who understand the subject much better than myself ; and the Ame-
ricans think that the route Captain Collinson has taken is likely to become the
course which whalers and other ships will follow for mercantile purposes.

276. Chairman.) 1 wish to ask you a question upon another subject, which I
consider of very great importance for our consideration; I think that, some
time ago, you stated to the Royal Geographical Society that, in your opinion,
those individuals who had explored the Arctic seas had shown so much courage,
so much devotion, and so much perseverance amongst the hardships to which
thev were exposed, that if they did not meet with a substantial reward, they
ought, at least, to receive from the country the reward of some lonorary dis-
tinction, such as a inedal. Do you continue of that opinion now ?-I not only
continue of that opinion, but I feel more strongly than ever that the country
owes this distinction to every one of those brave men who were ready to sacrifice
their lives, and underwent such perils as the Arctic explorers did. 1 am of
opinion that not only geographers, but that all naval and military men, will
consider that the men vho have so perilled their lives, and have shown so much
nautical skill, combined with such perseverance and courage, ought to be dis-
tinguislied exactly in the same manner as those who peril their lives in war. I
am sure that 1 only express the general feeling of the country that al those

brave
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brave men ought to be so honoured; and, if vou will allow me to say it, I think
that there are some of them, at least three, who wel merit still higher honours.

277. Will you name the thiree ?-In the order of naval rank in which they
stand, Kellett, Collinson, and M'Clure.

'27S. Captain Scobeli.] In suggesting the very proper reward of a medal for the
navigators in the Arctic Ocean, do not you think that if given at al, it ought to
be extended to the officers, and to every seaman -- 1 meant it so.

279. Sir T. Acland.] You alluded also to higher honours as being due to
sonie among them?-Yes; if I may be allowed to extend, my wish, I should
include another naval captain, who though he did not make the passage, did
much service in that cause. I mean Captain Inglefield, whose first voyage
I have always thouglit very remarkable in exploring to a more northern point
than any one else in search of Sir John Franklin. Looking at the whole case,
geographers have but one feeling, which is that of admiration of all the men
who have been employed in this search.

28o. Mr. Ellice.] You think it very desirable that in every case amedal sbould
be given to all those officers and men è-Unquestionably. I am of opinion that
all the seamen, as well as the officers, should receive an Arctie medal. I further
think that al the explorers in search of Franklin, whether by land or by water,
and whether they be in Her Majesty's service or not, should be honoured with an
Arctic medal. Such men as Rae, Penny, Kennedy, Stewart, Sutherland, and
others, should not be omitted; and I vould suggest that the American officers,
De Haven, Kane, &c., who have aided so ably and fearlessly in the search,
should also have the same honour.

William Thoma Domtille, m.D., called in; and Examined.

2S1. Chairnan.] YOU have been in the Arctic regions ?-I have.
2S2. Will you state to the Committee what information you may possess

with reference particularly to Captain Kellett's case. You were in the ship
with him ?-I was surgeon of Captain Kellett's ship, the " Resolute."

283. Mr. Gordon.] Were you sent by Captain Kellett to report upon the
condition and health of Captain I'Clure's ship's company ?-In March 1853,
a portion of Captain M'Clure's crew, 26 in number, arrived on board the
" Resolute" at Dealev Island. In consequence of the state of those men, Captain
Kellett considered that it was advisable that the remainder should be examiried
to determine upon their state of health. I was then sent across to examine
and report upon those men, and the conclusion which was come to at that time
is already in one of the Arctic Blue Books, at page 70. As this report is made
conjointly with the surgeon of Captain M'Clure's ship, I would wish it printed
in extenso, if admissible.

284. Did you not make another report, which does not appear in the book,
on the state of the crew ?-I kept a Nosological Journal, which we keep to
return to the Admiralty.

28.5. Do you happen to have any portion of that journal with you ?-I do.
286. Will you have the goodness to read any portions of that journal which

will give the Committee a general idea of the state of health of Captain M'Clure's
crew at that time ?-Captain M'Clure arrived on the 19th of April at Her
Majesty's ship " Resolute," and he remained on board until the 2d of May,
when another party from his ship arrived. " Until.this period Commander
M'Clure had been detained by Captaiu Kellett, the defective condition of his
-sledge's crew (who had doubtless been selected as the most efficient) being such
as to cause some apprehension for the capabilities of the remainder to make a
further sojourn in these regions; and most forcibly did the appearance of the
above detachment justify the measure. Some vague information of their en-
feebled condition had preceded them, the stern reality now presented itself;
one officer, subject to periods of mental aberration.; one man in a state of
demrentia" (or imbecility); "his condition and. appearance rendered still more
pitiable from severe frostbite of the fingers ; two men carried onth.e :sledges,
the one with scurvy, the, other witih urinary disease and phlegmonous: inflam-
mation of the leg; the remainder all more or less affected with scorbutic disease
_and debility, as indicated to the spectator-in the:tottering gait, attenuatedform,
and care-worn expression of -countenance, obasinally lighted up as- the truth
and1 recollection of their altered disposition flitted: across the imaginationý; a
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change (as some expressed themselves) difficult to realize. For several months
past had their thouglits been pregnant with the uncertainty of the future, to-
,which no definite resuits could be assigned."

:2S7. Mr. .Ellice.] When was this journal. written ?-At the time.
:288. What was the time '-" Copy of Sick List, and of Remarks appended to

Nosological Return for quarter commencing 1st April, ending 30th June
18.53."

289. Then that is the year before Captain M'Clure returned to this country?
-Yes.

290. Was that the second year after he had wintered in that region ?-He
had already been three winters.

291. Mr. Gordon.] Hov long was that meeting with the men which vou
describe there after the two ships' companies first met -- The day that they
arrived at the " Resolute" I inspected them.

292. This was the result of your first inspection of themi?-Yes. "In
expectation of their arrival due preparation had been made, and every facility
that our resources would admit of placed at my disposal by Captain Kellett,
who had ailso ordered the lower deck of the ' Intrepid' to be fitted as a ' Sani-
tariui' for their reception, this space being ample in its dimensions, and
possessed of the advantages of daylight and ventilation. The means of isolation
were thus afforded, and to it the worst cases consigned immediately on
arrival.

.29)3. That was the condition of the men who came over from Captain
M'Clure's ship to Captain Kellett's ; will you now give us an account of the
investigation which vou afterwards held on the remainder of Captain M'Clure's
ship's company, whom vou subsequently inspected?-That is also reported in
the Blue Book, page 70. Of the 30 men who were on board during the first
fortnight in Mav, no less tha 18 were under medical treatment; those were
the men who arrived in the first week.

294. Mr. Ellice.] Those were the men that arrived and were taken on board
Captain Kellett's ship ?-Yes.

29.5. Mr. Gordon.J The question refers to the remainder of the crew '-Of
the remainder, five-sixths were affected with scurvy, as is stated in my Report,.
where the names are given.

29(. How many did the crew consist of that were left with Captain M'Clure ?
-Thirtv-four men.

297. Mr. Gordon.] You have stated that the part of the ship's company who.
cane over to Captain Kellett's ship were all, more or less, in an enfeebled and
enervated condition. What was the condition of the remainder on board
Captain M'Clure's ship ?-They were in a very enfeebled state indeed. One
officer among them, a lieutenant, was unable to come with the first party;.
I brought him over; he died a few weeks afterwards. They were all in a very
bad condition.

298. Of those who werc left, how many were sufficiently strong and active-
to be in a condition to do hard work ?-There were not certainly 20 men who
were fit to do work at all.

299. Speaking as a medical man, what do you think would have been the-
condition of that crew if they had had to undergo the rigours of another Arctic·
winter ?-A greait number of thein must have fallen; they had no remedial
measures left in the ship.

300. What is vour opinion as to the possibility of their having effected their
escape from that positiun without the assistance that was afforded to them ?-
Unless the expedition had been sent from England, I do not think they could
have found their way to England.

o Mr. Jackson.] Were the crew of Captain M 'Clure in such a state as
not to be able to move on if the season permitted them ?-I think they were;.
we know the state in which they arrived on board the "Resolute," and if they
lad lad a journey of 58 davs to perform instead of 16, and if they had had to
carry their provisions for 58 days instead of 16, I cannot but infer that they
must have been in a very much worse condition than that in which we saw-
them.

302. Do you mean to infer that if the relief had not arrived, they must, most
or all of them, have perished?-I do; because when they had arrived after 58
days' journey at Port Leopold it would be a matter of doubt what the state of

that
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that depôt was. The depôt that was found in those regions was found to be
totally inapplicable, as described in Captain Pullen's journal, Bite Book,
P. 800.

-o3. Captain Scobell.] Captain M'Clure has stated in substance this: that lie
had four men in such a condition, that had lie not seen Captain Kellett at all,
he should have left his ship, and that part of the crew would have been sent to
the coast of America, and a large part would have gone with hin to Beechey
lsland, and from thence to another depôt of provisions to the southward; and
that he thinks that he should have lost four men, but that he should have saved
all the others, even if Lieutenant Pie. had never reached him; do you think he
is wrong in that opinion ?--I do not knov what number of the men lie intended
to send in that direction; if I knew the names of the men lie intended to have
sent in that direction, I could judge better.

304. Mr. Ellice.] Could any of them have gone ?--Some might have gone.

Rear-Adhniral William Alexander Baillie lanilton, called in; and Examined.

.5. Chairman.] YOU know the instructions we have from the House of
Commons to enter into the case of Captains Kellett and Collinson; will vou
have the goodness, as being fully acquainted with the subject, to state to the
Committee your opinion upon the subject ?-I was here this mnorning when Sir
Boderick Murchison was examined; and I have also heard the evidence of
Dr. Domville, and of one or two more witnesses, and that which may be gathered
fi om their evidence is the same that I should have to repeat. Probably, if
required to state anything in corroboration, I may allude in particular to Dr.
Domville's evidence when he spoke of the assistance rendered by Captain Kellett
to Capiain M'Clure's ciew. You have heard what he stated as to the condition
of the men; of course vou will know what weight to attachà to bis opinion as
that of a medical man. Looking back, as I did last night, to a little work,
drawn up by a very able hand in the office of the Hydrographer of the Admi-
raltv, 1 met with several letters, both public and private, and I was struck by a
passage in one of Captain M'Clure's letters to a near relation; he there speaks
of Captain Kellett as bis preserver; he styles him bis preserver; and both in
bis public letters to the Secretary of the Admiralty as well as in two other
private letters, he speaks of the despondency of his crew at the time, or rather
before lie heard of Captain Kellett's arrival; and he contrasts the different
condition of that crew after nearing of Captain Kellett's arrival vith that which
existed previously, and he describes it as a state changing from despondency to
joy. These are bis own words, both officially and privately; and they are the
more remarkable because, in his private letters as well as in the public, there
is no variation of phrase ; the saine continues throughout; and althougli he
appears to have hoped still to make his way tbrough these perils, I believe
that the very bravery of spirit and devoted courage, which alone could have
enabled him to have carried bis ship and his crew through the perils they
had to encounter tbrough three Arctic winters, led him to entertain, and
candidly and honestly in his own mind to entertain, a more sanguine view as to
the capability of his crew than the facts and circumstances warranted; and
I think that when lie contemplated sending one part of bis crew by Behring's
Straits and another to go by Port Leopold, although in the abstract there was a
possibility of accomplishing both objects, yet he did not sufficiently take into
consideration the condition and circumstances of the men, attenuated and
exhausted as they would have been by another winter, and depressed as they
would necessarily have been by the uncertainty of what was before them.
Although the men did a positive amount of work in proceeding to join Captain
Kellett, they then had a certainty before them which kept their spirits up ; and
their having performed a journey with such certainty before them, was no
measure of their power and capacity to perform a mucli longer journey with
great uncertainty ; for supposing that there was at Port Leopold (whicli in itself
is only a contingency) a supply of provisions, they would probably have had to
winter at Port Leopold. Then what would have become of the crew in a fouth
Arctic winter, with al the uncertainty as to a supply of provisions at Port
Leopold, which might or might not have existed there. Then he would have
had to go through Barrow Strait to Pond's Bay, and thence to Disco, as he
said he should have tried to do if lie found:no whalers in Pond's Bay. I recol-
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lect an expression in his letter to the Admiralty to this effect: " After Port
Leopold, 1 shall try to get to Pond's Bay, which I know is annually frequented
by whalers. Supposing I should be too late in arriving there, I shail endeavour
to puisi on with such boats as I have to Disco Island ;" a very perilous voyage,
comprising the whole width of Baffin's Bav, and when lie arrived there he
would stili be in uncertainty. He hoped, he said, to be able to engage, by hire
or purchase, one of the schooners that annually trade between that point and
Denmark. But there would have been great uncertainty as to finding any
vessel at Disco that he could purchase or hire, and even if he found one, it
miglit he too late to inake the voyage that year ; and, if so, that would have
involved a fifth vinter, in what mav be termed an Arctic region. Now, I do
not want nedical, if there is any naval officer here, who has passed two or
three winters in an Arctie region; he can speak better than I can as to the
effect that everv additional winter bas upon a ship's conpany in those regions.
Therefore, when I look back to Captain M'Clure's own expression in writing
to bis sister, when lie says, " To-morrow I hope to see my preserver," I cannot
belp> thinking that lie wrote vhat he really felt at the time; and therefore I
think the utmost credit vas due to any officer who, by his exertions in carrying
out his instructions, removed all those doubts, and rendered the preservaton
of Captain M'Clure and bis crew, a matter of certainty. And this credit was
certainly due to the energetie and judicious exertions of Captain Kelett.

306. Mr. Gordon.] Is it not the fact, that in the official despatches Captain
M'Clure, verv much to his eredit, and in a very heroic manner, desired that no
expedition miglit be sentto look for hin in case he was not heard of within a given
tine ; and does not that fact in itself show that he considered there was consider-
able uncertaintv as to whether lie should be able to effect his return ?-He did
say, certainly, " If you do not hear of me in a certain time, there will be an end
of us." Whether that related to the possibility of bis not being able to get
provisions for another vear, or to the danger of bis being nipped where lie
nust perish, and could not reach provisions, I cannot say; but he certainly did

say, " If you do not hear of me within a certain time, do not risk another
expedition," or in shorter words and more emphatic.

307. Does not that fact, in your opinion, prove that lie thouglit it matter
of uncertainty whvether le should be able to effect bis return ?-At the time lie
wrote that, it did, but subsequently le got into a better position.

308. Captain Scobell.] Was that certain time which lie spoke of expired
when he first met Lieutenant Pim ?-Yes.

309. Chairman.) Does it not help to show the great perseverance and courage
of Captain M'Clure ?--Certainiv; I conceive that the condition in which bis
people were, and the salvation of the crew, were owing, in the first instance, to
bis indomitable spirit, fine temper, courage, and resolution; and secondly, to
that which lie himself stated in his public despatch, the unwearied care, skill,
and tenderness of Dr. Armstrong, bis medical officer. I am glad of an oppor-
tunity of paying tribute to him.

3 10. Admiral TTalcoit.] You stated that Captain M1'Clure, in addressing the
Adimiralty officially upoi the subject, stated the way to which lie intended to
have recourse, iii case le should, be obliged to leave bis ship. May not that
letter to the Adniraltv be understood merely as meaning to ask them not to
send succour in die direction in which bis ship was, as lie would probably have
left that spot. and not as saying that ie anticipated that lie should. be irre-
coverablv lost ?-I read the expression as applying to their actual destruction,
their not surviving. That is the way in which I understood the expression.

Sl. Mr. Butt.] He appeared to consider that there was great risk of bis
never returning fron the expedition ?- Certainly ; there is always a risk ; there
is a risk from first to last.

312. Any one going on such a journey over a frozen ocean, must anticipate
great probability of being lost ?-Certainly; that is a probability which must
be borne in mind throughout the whole of such a search.

313. Captain Scobell.] Are the Committee to inderstand that you consider that
Captain M'Clure bas performed what may be called the .North-west Passage by
various means ; by taking bis ship to where he left lier, by walking over the ice
to Melville Island, and then returning home by the Atlantie ?-The evidence
which I have heard upon that point this morning, is-that which I should concur

in;
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in; Captain M'Clure certainly clearly determined what is water, or rather ice
upon water.

33,4. Admiral Walcott.] He passed from ocean to ocean ?-He passed from
ocean to' ocean,

315. Sir T. D. Acland.] But it is your opinion that it is not certain that
Captain M'Clure and his crew could ever have arrived in England without the
assistance of Captain. Kellett ?-That is of course a niatter of opinion; but I do
think that some of them would.

316. Captain Scobell.] Perhaps you can tell whether when Captain Collinson
or Captain M'Clure got their last instructions from home, they had any
expectation that a vessel would be sent to meet them entering at the opposite
end'?- No, they had no assurance upon that point.

317. Part of Captain M'Clure's instructions were ultimately to make for
Melville Island, and it appears that he had made for Melville Island some time
before Captain Kellett arrived there, and that he had left; there was a notice
of where he was to be found. Therefore le must have calculated upon some
probability of meeting with aid ?-He might fairly calculate upon it, for it was
known that we should continue to send both ways.

31S. That was a point which Sir Edward Parry had reached maiy years
before ?-Yes.

Captain Robert John Lene.urier M'Clure, R. N. called in; and further Examined.

3i9. Ciairman.] IS there anything further that you wish to state to the
Committee ?-Perhaps I mùay be allowed to say a word with respect to Dr.
Domville. When I went over with my men to the " Resolute," they were
immediately placed under Domville's charge, and lie paid the greatest possible
attention to them in their enfeebled state ; and I think that some tribute is due
to Dr. Domville for his great attention to them.

Rear-Admiral
V.A. B.Hanilton.

6 July 1855-

Captain
R. J. L. MClure,

R.N~.

Captain Richard Collinson, R. N., called in; and Examined.

320. Chairnan.] THE Comnittee have received instructions froin the House
of Commons to reopen the question which is before them, by considering your
services and those of Captain Kellett ; will you have the goodness to state to
the Cominittee the course which vou took, and whatever you think necessary to
bring before them, as far as you arc concerned?-I would first observe that
in the year, 1850, on getting up to the ice, I was 18 days behind Captain
M'Clure, and then I consulted with my oficers, and they were of opinion that
attempting to proceed easterly that season would be a useless waste of time; so
that the remainder of it was devoted to an attempt to get into the Polar Sea to
the northward instead of proceeding easterly tdong the coast. Having reached
73 A*, and being stopped entirely by the ice, I came down to the southward again,
and knowing that I could be of no use in those seas (the " Plover" being in a
position to supply the " Investigator"), for the purpose of replenishing my pro-
visions I went to Hong Kong, and returned the following year. Arriving early
in the season of 1851, I followed the track of Captain M'Clure to the eastward;
into the Prince of Wales' Strait, and there I found that he had r,assed the winter
in the reighbourhood of Princess Royal Island. Supposing rbat lie had gone to
the north-east, I followed up to the head of the straits, where the ice blocked the
entrance, here I remained a short time, but I found that it was coming in too
fast to afford any likelihood of my getting out to the north-east this season, so I
then went on the. west side of Baring Island, where I again found traces
of the "Investigator"; but, for the want of any idea as to what Captain
M'Clure's intentions were, I came to the conclusion, from the quantity of
provisions which lie had left in Princess Royal Island, that lie had gone
back to Point Barrow. I did not think that lie was to the northward of
me on Baring Island; but the sea being still open, I went 70 miles fur-
ther. Then I felt assured that if a westerly wind occurred, my retreat
would be cut off. There was no harbour that I could get into, and very likely
my vessel would be wrecked; therefore I returned, and took up my winter
quarters at the entrance of Prince of Wales' Strait, where I should have an
opportunity of examiningthe depôts left by Captain M'Clure, and also of seeing

o.61. D 2 whether

Captain
R. Cdlinson, n. y.
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Captain whether another strait did not exist between Wollaston Land and Prince Albert
R. Colu~m, .. Land. The travelling parties in April and May of 18 1"reached Melville Island,

and examined the coast to the southward, entering the inlet now called Prince
S8~55- Albert Sound. This was in A pril ind May.-We did not get to the bottom of it,

but 1 thought that it would take me into the centre of the Archipelago, where
1 should have a greater probability of meeting with Sir John Franklin than by
pursuing a more northerlv course. I therefore proceeded. to see whether that
was a 8ound or Strait the first thing the next season, which proved a very bad
one intdeed. and I mnay mention as an instance of it, that although we left our
harbour on the 5th of August, and ve were in sight of it on the 5th of Sep-
teimber. The ice heinmed us in on both sides, and it was the 13th of Septeniber
before 1 ascertained that which I supposed to be a Strait, to be a Sound, and
that Prince Albert land wxas joined to Wollaston land. I then came to the
determination that the best course for me to afford assistance to the nissing
shi;s would be to proceed to the south-east corner of it ; I therefore went
through Dolphin and Union Straits, and succeeled that season in getting into
Canibridge Bay, and liad the condition of the ice next year been favourable I
should have reached the point gained by Sir James Ross, when he came down
the coast in the year 1849 ; so that the whole coast would have been completely
examined. But in consequence of the hummocky condition of the ice, 160 miles
remaiis unexplored and it is here, I am almost certain, that the ships were
abandoned.

321. Sir T. D. A cland.] What was the furthest point you reached ?-Gateshead
Island: - it is in longitude 1000 The furthest point reached by Sir J. Ross is
Point Bird; the interval being 160 miles. That is the only part which has not
been searched in the whole sea. I felt assured that with the trained crews
which .1 had, and the assistance of the Esquimaux dogs, I should have reached
the furthest point gained by Sir James Ross, viz., Bellot Straits; but immediately
we came to 69th degree of latitude, I found the ice in such hummocks that
w e were obliged to take both crews to one sleigh, consequently we did not
accomplish so mucli as ive expected. Tihis hummucky state of the ice, I think,
is one great reason why it may be assumed that the strait is open, because the
huninucks were 20 feet high, and they could not have been formed without
immense pressure, and nust therefore cone from Barrow's Strait. If this were
a hav, the ice would have cleared out in the saine way as I found it in Dense
Strait, which had scarcely a piece of ice in it, thus establishing, in my opinion,
the fact of a communication between Peel's Sound and Victoria Strait; and I
thought myself quite as likely to make the passage home in the ship by this
route as by returningto Point Barrow. and should have taken that course, but
on examnining our coals, we found we were 18 tons short, and therefore it became
incumbent upon mue ta return before the ensuing winter to a country where
drift wood could be obtained. I therefore returned to the westward, and passed
a third winter in Camden Bay, which is in the Russian territory, from whence our
egress was comparatively short and easy the third summer.

322. You passed through Behring's Straits -- Yes.
323. And there you found the " Plover "--We found the " Plover " at Point

Barrow. I may mention that when we were at Camden Bay a native came to
us from thé eastward, and brought with him a paper which had been printed
on board the "Plover," which informed me that she was at Point Barrow, and
also that the "Investigator " had not been heard of since 1850. - I then, for the
first time, came to the conclusion that she must have been on the north face
of Baring Island; and, in order to enable Captain Maguire as soon as possible
to obtain provisions, in order that we night return, I sent a boat from Camden
Bay to Point Barrow to communicate with the "Plover," that she might collect
provisions, so as to enable us to return to the eastward in the same season, to
the assistance of our consort, who we then did iot know had communicated
with the eastern expeditions.

sea. Admiral WIalcott.] You sailed in company with Captain M'Clure ; where
did you part company with Captain M'Clure ?-At the Stridts of Magellan,
and I never saw the " Investigator " again.

325. Captain Scobell.] How long was it from the time that you lost sight of
Captain M'Clure till you next met him?-It was from April 1850 to April
1855 : five vears.

326. Did you give him any special orders when he left you different from the
Admiralty
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Admiralty orders?-Having arrived at the Sandwich Islands before him, I came
to the conclusion that I should be up to the ice before him; I did not consider
it possible that he would get there first, and so only entered in my official
despatches into the question of what should happen if I proceeded without
waiting for him, and I told him in that contingency what to do. By the advice
of Captain Kellett I followed up Cook and Beechey's track. But in my private
letter to Captain M'Clure I stated that Captain Kellett had corne through the
Straits of Amoukta, and that if he was late, perhaps it would be worth while
risking that passage. He fortunately, went. that way, and arrived at the edge
of the ice 18 days before me. Being relieved in a great measure of the respon-
sibility which ensued in consequence of that paragraph in their Lordships' letter
which enjoined the two ships keeping together, he with a daring, which I
honour, boldly pushed in. I might be ahead of him, and he took the best alter-
native that could possibly, have been taken. Instead of waiting, he went for-
ward, either to succour the missing crews, or to follow me, as he miglit have
supposed he was doing.
. 327. Admiral Talcott.) You say that you left orders for him at the Sand-

wich Islands; did you also address to him a private letter, and did he ever
reccive those orders or that private letter ?-He received the orders.

32S. Did he receive the private letter ?-I am not aware.
- 329. Had you the means within your power of keeping companywith Captain
M'Clure from the time you left England ?-Most assuredly.

330. Why did you not ?-Because I thought the service would be performed
better by the ships separately, until we arrived at the edge of the ice.

331. What were the orders that the Adniraity gave you upon that point?-
They cautioned me against suffering the two vessels to separate, but until we
arrived at the ice I thought it more likely ve should make a quicker passage,
as one vessel might have the advantage in sailing in light winds, and the other
in strong breezes.

332. Chiairman.] Had you appointed any place to meet at in case of separa-
tion ?-Yes, at the Straits of Magellan, as the Admiralty had ordered; and
next at the Sandwich Islands.

333. Sir T. Herbert.] Your first object was to get to the Sandwich Islands
as fast as possible ?-Yes.

334. You had no object in keeping together till you got through Behring's
Straits? --No ; the object of my getting first to the Sandwich Islands was, that
I might enter into the contract for provisions.

335. Did you give to Captain M'Clure a copy of your Admiralty orders ?-
Captain M-Clure was supplied with a printed copy.

336. Mr. Ellice.] I suppose there is no doubt that, taking all those orders
into consideration, what Captain M'Clure did was consistent with the orders he
received?-Perfectly so.

337. Captain Scobell.] Was Melville Island mentioned in the orders ?--We
were not ordered to go to Melville Island. Their Lordships left the course to
be pursued, after passing Point Barrow, to my discretion and judgment.

33S. Was not Melville Island mentioned ?-The Parry Islands are mentioned
incidentally, but not particularly.

- 339. When and where did you first overtake indications of Captain M'Clure's
advance ?-At Princess Royal Island, in August 1851, in Prince of Wales'
Strait.

340. When was your excursion made to Melville Island ?-The excursion to
Melville Island was made in the next spring, in 1852.

341. Did you vourself go upon that excursion ?-I went as far as the north
end of Prince of Wales' Strait, and then I followed the north coast to the
eastward, being desirous to see whether it was practicable for the ship. LIeu-
tenant Parks, the third lieutenant, went from Prince of Wales' Strait to Melville
Island.

342. Do vou know how long that was after Captain M'Clure had first reached
Melville Island ?-Twenty days.

343. Do you mean that you were there only 20 days after his first reaching
Melville Island, when lie went and found no one there ?-That was ail.

344. Sir T. D. Acland.] Did your officer find that he had been there ?-No;
he saw the sleigh tracks, but thought they were Esquimaux's.

345. Admiral Walcott.] But Captain M'Ulure had entered Prince of Wales'
. o.61. D 3 Inlet

Captain
R. Colison, n

6 July 2855.
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Captain Inlet previously to your being there -. He had entered it 10 montls pre-
R. Collinson, at.N-. vious1v. '

346. It was vour original intention t !lave endeavoured to reach Melville6 July 1855. Island through Prince of Wales' Inlet -- Yes.
3I. Findiiig vou did not succeed, you then made the other attemnpt?

I inade another atteipt. In consequence of the journey I made up the
Prince of Wales' Strait, I came to the conclusion that it woud be verv difficult
for a ship to get round Peel Point, and I thought that Prince Albert Sound,
which had been examined, but not to its end, might have been another strait
which would have led me up to Cape Walker, where [ knew Sir John Franklin
was ordered to go.

348. Captain Scobell.] Did you find any indications of any ships having
been there ?--We picked up on Finlayson's Island, near Cambridge Bay, a piece
of wood, which Dr. Rae says wTas not left bv hiin, and it can oulv be accounted
for by its having comie from. oie of the missing ships. It has the Queen's mark
upon it, the broad arrow.

349. Was it oak *-No; a piece of fir, three feet long. It was part of
a door; it wNas the portion of the door that the handle goes into.

3.50. Is it usual to put the broad arrow upon that?-There was a copper latch
with a broad arrow upon it.

351. Admiral Walcott.] What has become of it ?-It is in Mr. Barrows pos-
session I believe it lias been sent to the dockyard to get an opinion whether
it was part of the fitting of the missing vessels. It had two coats of paint; the
coat of black had been primed, which is never done in the mercliant service.
In the mercliant service they paint black in the first instance, and then paint
black over black, but in the dockyards it is invariably primned with a coat of
paint of a different colour; the underside was painted white, over a coat of
green.

352. Was not that piece of wood sent to the dockyard, and a report made
upon it to the Adiniralty in reply, and can you state what that report was?-
I have not heard.

353. Chairèman.] What waLs vour impression as to that piece of wood -L
think it must have formed part of the titting either of the "Erebus" or the
" Terror."

354. Admiral Walcott.] Your impression with respect to that piece of wood
is, that it munst have drifted through the channel that is now unexplored -Yes.

355. Sir T. Herbert.] Where was it found -- On the east side of the Finlay-
son Islands, on the beach.

36. Admiral a/col.) Are you satisfied that it could not have belonged to
your ship ?-Perfectly; one of the men picked it up when I was close beside
him.

357. Captain Scobell.] Does the current set fromn the northward there ?-
The current is governed entirelv by the wind. In Dease Strait I found no
sensible current, except fron the wind.

:351S. Sir T. Herbert.] What was the prevailing wind ?-The prevailing wind
is easterly during the latter pcrtion of the summer, and north-westerly during
the spring.

359. Admiral IValcott.] Had you any power of ascertaining the strength of
that current -- I had tidal observations made. The ship was in Cambridge
Bav, excluded fromu the tide in the Straits, and immediately the ice cleared
away we sailed to the vestward; but on leaving Cambridge Bay we were car-
ried by the current to the eastward.

3t.0. 1ad vou been with any previous Arctic navigator -I was in the South
Seas, not in the Arctic Regions.

361. Sir T. Herber.) Do vou suppose that that piece of wood was drifted by
the wind, or carried by the tide- I think it was carried by the tide. It was
rubbed at the corners, and it appeared that it had been drifted along by the
tide. Tlie fracture was evidently not new.

362. Was it part of a panel?-It was part of a panel; the two ends of the
panel were worn away.

363. Did vou ascertain what vas the rise and fall of the tide there ?--Two
feet.

364. Captain ScobdI.] You said that this piece of wood was painted white;
do vou suppose fron that that it belonged to an otficers cabin?-I think it

belonged



SELECT COMMITTEE ON ARCTIC EXPEDITION.

belonged to the companion hatchway. ýWhen I found nothing else, I came to Captain
the opinion that one of the screw steam vessels had made the passage, and R. Collinson 1-w
that being short of wood they broke up the hatches of her engine-room for
fuel, and a small piece had dropped overboard. That was the impression I 6 July 1855.

came to, until I heard that no vessel had beenthere but ourselves.
36.5. Chairman.] Did you form an opinion as to which way the flood came?

-- No; there we found the set of the tide entirely governed by the wind.
366. Can you say which way the tide comes in ?-I had a great number of

observations made, and I found that the pieces of ice, when they! floated away,
floated entirely in the direction that the wind was going. The experiment was
made with pieces that were nearly level wvitli the water, as well as with pieces
that would be afected with by the wind.

367. Sir T. Herberi.] The current was governed by the vind?-Principally
by the wind ; the observations axe not, many, because the moment the ice broke
up, we left the bay, and went to the westward.

368. Did you find the current running to the westward stronger than to the
eastward ?-During the time we were navigating:it, I found it running strongest
to the eastward, because the westerly wind prevailed in the commencement of
the summer.

369. -Is it-more difficult to get to the -eastward than to the westward,?-I
think it is more difficult to get to the west.

370. Captain Scobell.] Were your officers and crew healthy generally ?-The
average during the time they were on the ice was a little more than six per
cent. on the sick list. The last vear was the healthiest of the three.

371. What provisions had you remaining when you left the Arctic Sea?-
Two months'.

372. Sir T. D. Acland.] How many deaths had vou?-Three deaths in the
time we were in the Polar Sea.

373. When you got to the Pacific did not you go back to the ice again ?-
Yes. After rounding Point Barrow I went round to the southward, and com-
municated with an American ship, which told me that our three ships were
at Port Clarence; a thick fog ensued, in which the " Plover" passed us on her
way to Point Barrow.

374. How did you communicate with her ?-When I arrived at Port Clarence,
at 10 o'clock at night, Captain Trollope informed me that she had sailed two
days previously. I sailed the next day to recail her.

375. You went after her yourself, having just got out of the ice ?-Yes.
376. Did you find her at Point Barrow?-Yes; I found her at Point Barrow,

and brouglit her away; she was "ien preparing to take up her winter quarters.
377. How far did you go back to Port Clarence from Point Barrow ý-About

500 miles.
378. How long had you been ir. the ice yourself ?-Three years and two

months.
379. Mr. Stephenson.] What amount of new coast did you explore ?-In the

" Enterprise " we added but little to geographical knowledge; what we went over
had been previously explored by Captain M'Clure and by Dr. Rae, but unknown
to us; so that the principal geographical feature we accomplished was the posi-
tive ascertainment of the junction of Prince Albert's Land with that of Wol-
laston and Victoria. Dr. Rae had previously gone up Victoria Strait, and we
have just added a small portion there.

380. Sir.T. D. i1cland.] I observe that Dr. Rae's furthest is called Point
Pelly ; you mentioned Gateshead Island; is that to the north of Halkett Island?
-Yes.

381. WVas not the "Enterprise" the first ship that sailed through Dease
Straits ?-She was.

382. Therefore you have establisbed the fact that from Victoria Sound to
Prince of Wales Strait there is a clear navigation ?-The navigation from Barrow
Strait to Cambridge Bay bas been established by the " Enterprise." From
England a vessel would reach the furthest point to which we went, and in all
probability the Magnetic Pole itself, in 10 months by following the route of the
"Enterprise " through the Behring Sea.

383. Are you of opinion that if there be an open channel from Gateshead
Island to Cape Bird, there is in that direction through Victoria Channel a com-
plete passage by water ?-That is the only way in which the passage can be

D4 made,
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Captatn made, as I conceive. After the two vears in which Parry attempted to get from
R. Colinson, . -. Melville Island to Banks's Land, and the two years in which Kellett attenpted

to get in that direction, and the three years in which M'Clure watched it on
. ~ the other side, and the one year which I looked at it in Prince of Wales Strait,

I think it may be said that, unless something very unusual occurs, there never
will be a navigable passage in that direction; and, therefore, this remains the
only one now that has not yet been tried with the same degree of determination
which bas been applied to the others.

384. A.nd the hunmocks of ice, 20 feet high, of which you spoke do not
present an insurmountable obstacle ?-They come down every year, and they
gradually get to the southward and waste away ; but unless there wxas a clear
strait through there, those hummocks would never be of that size.

385. Mr. Stephenson.) Was there any indication, from the formation of those
humnocks, in what direction the pressure was made ?-The pressure was from
the north-east; they were pressed upon the shore froin a northern direction.

386. Did they appear to be pressed by the current, or by the wind, or by
buth ?-I should say both combined.

387. You spoke of the tides being small and irregular ; do you consider that
they were lunar tides, or tides influenced by local vinds or currents ?--The rise
and fall was a lunar tide, but the current was so weak that it was overcome by
the wind.

APPENDIX.
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SELECT COMMITTEE ON ARCTIC EXPEDITION.

LETTER from Lady Franklin to W A. Mackinnon, Esq., M.P., Chairman. Appendix.

Sir, 60, Pail Mall, 6 July 1855.
I vENrURE to trespass a few minutes on your time and that of the Committee over

which you preside, in behalf of the claims of my late husband, Sir John Franklin, and his
compamons, as connected with the subject you have under discussion.

Whien it is remembered that these brave and unfortunate men, after years of intense
privations and suffering, were found dead of starvation upon a spot which they could not
have reached witlhout laving first solved that geographical problem which vas the object and
aim of all these painful efforts, and when it is also remembered that they are beyond the
reach of their country's rewards, you will not, I think, refuse them the just acknowledgment
that is due to their memories.

It would ill become me, and is far indeed from my widh, to attempt to question the
claims of Captain M'Clurc to every honour his country may think proper to award him.
That enterprising officer is not the less the discoverer of a North-west Passae, or, in other
words, of one of the links which was wanted to connect the main channels of navigation
already asccrtained by previous explorers, because the "Erebus" and " Terror" under my
husband had previously, though unknown to Captain M'lClure, discovered another and a
more navigable passage; that passage, in fact, which if ever ships attempt to push their way
from one ocean to the other, vil assuredly be the one adopted. And it can never be
denied to Captain M'Clure that he is the first who has by his own skill, and by means of
the timely assistance of the brave men who were in search of him, made his individual way
from one ocean to the other. Such a transit, though not the object which has engaged the
attention of the civilised world for centuries, is a distinction of which any man may well be
proud.

What I presume to daim for those who can urge nothing for themnselves is the first
discovery of a navigable passage for ships in that unknown space which lay between the
discoveries of former navigators, for to such connecting channel has the solution of the
geographical problem for nmany ycars past been reduced. My husband was specially
warned by bis instructions not to scek it in the quarter where the "Investigator" lies, lest
impenetrable ice should, as was anticipated, arrest his progress, and he found the pasesage
by acting (in conformity with his instructions) on those theoretical convictions w'ich, as
Sir John Richardson has shown, he deliberately formed.

Convinced, Sir, that it must be your desire, and that of the other honourable Members
of the Committee, to do justice to the dead, while you duly and generously honour the
living, and believing that these two objects do not clash, but may be harmoniously combined,
I have presumed thus to address you.

I trust you will pardon the widow and the friend this last effort in behalf of those
who have nobly perished.

I have, &c.
(signed) Jane Franklin.

CHART.409.
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